TIME

5:30

5:35
5:40
5:45
5:50

5:55

6:00

6:05
7:05
7:10

7:30

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

WEDNESDAY, MAY 7, 2014
5:30 P.M.

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM

CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
April 15, 2014, Regular Meeting
April 15, 2014, Closed Session

APPROVAL OF THE MAY 7, 2014 AGENDA

BOARD OF EDUCATION’S REQUEST FOR LOTTERY FUNDS

APPALACHIAN THEATRE OF THE HIGH COUNTRY REQUEST

PrRoPOSED AUDIT CONTRACT FOR FY 2014

MAINTENANCE MATTERS

Bid Award Request for Asphalt Sealing and
Striping Project

Bid Award Request for Appalachian Enterprise
Center Renovation Project

Bid Award Request for Medic Base Architectural
Services

Contract Renewal Request for Parks and
Recreation Weekend Janitorial Services

TAX MATTERS

Monthly Collections Report
Refunds and Releases
Unpaid Real Estate Tax Bills

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

Presentation of the FY 2015 Capital Improvement
Plan (CIP)

Presentation of the Manager’s FY 2015
Recommended Budget

Proposed Property & Liability Insurance and
Workers Compensation Renewals Request
Request for Use of Old High School Parking Lot
Boards & Commissions

Announcements

PuBLic COMMENT

CLOSED SESSION
Attorney/Client Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)
Personnel Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6)

# TOPIC

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
A.
B.
C.
D.

8
A.
B.
C.

9
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.

10

11 BREAK

12

13  ADJOURN

PRESENTER

Ms. LY MARZE

MR. JONATHAN ALLEN
Ms. KATHY MITCHELL
MR. ROBERT MARSH

MR. LARRY WARREN

MR. DERON GEOUQUE

PAGE

11
13
57

75

49

117

123

127
129
131

133

135

137

143
145
155

158
158
158



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 2:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

April 15, 2014, Regular Meeting Minutes
April 15, 2014, Closed Session Minutes



050714 BCC Meeting

MINUTES

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
TUESDAY, APRIL 15, 2014

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday,
April 15, 2014, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina.

PRESENT: Nathan Miller, Chairman
David Blust, Vice-Chairman
Billy Kennedy, Commissioner
John Welch, Commissioner
Perry Yates, Commissioner
Stacey “Four” Eggers, 1V, County Attorney
Deron Geouque, County Manager
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board

Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M.

Vice-Chairman Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Commissioner Yates led the Pledge
of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the April 1, 2014, regular meeting and
closed session minutes.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to approve the April 1, 2014,
regular meeting minutes as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to approve the April 1, 2014,
closed session minutes as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the April 15, 2014, agenda.

County Manager Geouque requested to add a Proposed Resolution Terminating/Appointing Plat
Review Officers and Possible Action After Closed Session to the agenda.



050714 BCC Meeting

Chairman Miller requested to add under Boards and Commissions an appointment to serve as a
representative on Appalachian State University’s Town and Gown Committee.

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the
April 15, 2014, agenda as amended.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

BOONE TowN CouNCIL REQUEST FOR WATAUGA COUNTY TO CHANGE THE
METHOD OF DISTRIBUTION OF SALES TAX

Mayor Andy Ball, Town of Boone, read a resolution from the Town of Boone requesting
consideration of changing the sales tax distribution method from ad valorem to per capita.
Lengthy discussion was held by Board members and Mayor Ball.

The Towns of Blowing Rock, Beech Mountain and Seven Devils provided resolutions requesting
the continuation of the current ad valorem method of sales tax distribution. The following spoke
briefly encouraging the same: Blowing Rock Town Manager Scott Fogleman, Beech Mountain
Councilman Alan Holcombe, and Seven Devils Mayor Pro-Tem Brad Lambert.

After continued discussion, Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved
to change the method of sales tax distribution to per capita.

VOTE: Aye-2(Kennedy, Welch)
Nay-3(Miller, Blust, Yates)

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION HONORING HOUND EARS CLUB’S 50™ ANNIVERSARY

Mr. Jason Reagan, Director of Communications for Hound Ears Club, gave a presentation
detailing the history of the Club and a proclamation for consideration honoring the 50
Anniversary of Hound Ears Club.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to adopt the proclamation as
presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION ESTABLISHING GREENING MY PLATE WEEK

Mr. Bill Moretz will request the Board to proclaim the week of April 27, 2014 as Greening My
Plate Week. The purpose of the proclamation is to bring awareness of the benefits of locally
grown fruits and vegetables and recognize and celebrate the farmers who provide this produce.



050714 BCC Meeting

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adopt the proclamation as
presented.
VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

BID AWARD REQUEST FOR PAVING RECYCLING CENTER AND TRANSFER
STATION PARKING AREAS

Mr. J.V. Potter, Operations Service Director, presented the following bids for paving the
Recycling Center parking lot and patching at the Transfer Station:

Bidder Amount

Moretz Paving $80,648.00
Boone Paving $105,700.00
Tri County Paving $98,672.60

Moretz Paving was the lowest responsive bidder in the amount of $80,648. Mr. Potter stated that
adequate funds were budgeted to cover the expense.

County Manager Geouque stated that the Transfer Station floor was scheduled to be replaced
and, therefore, paving near the Transfer Station may be delayed due to that project.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to award the bid for paving at
the Recycling Center parking lot and patching at the Transfer Station to Moretz Paving in the
amount of $80,648 as presented.
VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

TAX MATTERS

A. Monthly Collections Report

Tax Administrator Larry Warren presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of
March 2014. This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was
required.

B. Refunds and Releases

Mr. Warren presented the Refunds and Releases Report for March 2014, as well as a report from
the new motor vehicle billing system, North Carolina Vehicle Tax System (NCVTS), for Board
approval:

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK

Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to approve the Refunds and
Releases Report for March 2014, as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0



050714 BCC Meeting

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the North
Carolina Vehicle Tax System Refunds and Releases Report for March 2014 as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

C. Proposed Resolution Terminating/Appointing Plat Review Officers

Mr. Warren presented a resolution terminating Plat Review Officers that were no longer
employed with the County and appointing Brandon Saunders and Nathan Bland as Review
Officers in addition to Ms. Marilyn M. Osborne who already serves as a Review Officer.

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adopt the resolution as
presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

HiGH COUNTRY RURAL PLANNING ORGANIZATION (RPO) TRANSPORTATION
PRIORITIES

Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, will present the Transportation priorities for
the High Country Rural Planning Organization. The General Assembly adopted a new funding
method for transportation projects last year which requires that projects from all modes of
transportation be ranked together. Mr. Furman compiled all modes into one list for easier
viewing and ranking. In addition, he contacted the four municipalities and AppalCART for
input. The Town of Boone was to submit one project directly to the RPO; the other
municipalities do not have allotted projects, so their input comes through the County. Mr.
Furman stated that the Town of Boone was likely to choose an “in-town” project, such as the
King Street/College Street improvements. Seven Devils favors the NC Highway 105 bridge/turn
lane at Broadstone Road. Beech Mountain’s top project is the Beech Mountain Parkway
Walkway (shown as an Avery County project). Blowing Rock favors the King/College Street
improvements, US Highway 421/321/194 North to Vilas widening and US Highway 321/NC
Highway 105 intersection improvements in that order. AppalCART would like to purchase an
additional bus if proposed student housing occurs. Documentation is attached on the input
received.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to select the following projects,
in the stated order of priority:

1. US Highway 421 to the junction of US Highway 421/321 in Vilas

2. NC Highway 105 @ Broadstone Road (new bridge and left turn lane)

3. Bamboo Road/Wilson Ridge Road (widen the lanes and improve the intersections)
4. NC Highway 194 from King Street to Howard’s Creek Road

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0



050714 BCC Meeting

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Request to Waive Fee for Use of Human Services Center Parking Lot

County Manager Geouque stated that, per Commissioner request, staff contacted Mr. Bill Mast
to obtain more details regarding his use of the Human Services Center for a fund raising event.
Mr. Mast indicated that the money raised by the event would be used for scholarships for rising
high school seniors.

No action was taken.

B. Boards and Commissions

County Manager Geouque stated that the Blowing Rock Town Council recommended the
appointments of Doug Matheson and Ray Pickett to serve as representatives on the Watauga
County Recreation Commission.

Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to waive the second reading
and appoint Doug Matheson and Ray Pickett to the Watauga County Recreation Commission.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Chairman Miller stated that a request had been submitted for the County to appoint
representatives to Appalachian State University’s Town and Gown Committee.

Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to appoint Commissioner
Kennedy and County Manager, Deron Geouque, and/or his designee to represent Watauga
County on the Town and Gown Committee.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

C. Announcements
County Manager Geouque announced the following:

e Caldwell Community College & Technical Institute will hold an Open House & Business
After Hours on Thursday, April 17, 2014, from 5:00 -7:00 P.M. at the Watauga Campus
located at 506 Community College Drive in Boone.

e Budget Work Sessions are scheduled for Thursday, May 8, and Tuesday, May 13, 2014;
both beginning at 4:00 P.M. and will be held in the Commissioners’ Board Room.

e Community Pride Week will be held May 12 — 17. The week will conclude on May 17
with Household Hazardous Waste Day at the County Landfill from 9:00 A.M. until 2:00
P.M. and Operation Medicine Cabinet at the three local Food Lion locations as well as
Foscoe Fire Department from 10:00 A.M. until 2:00 P.M. Please see the enclosed
announcement for more details.



050714 BCC Meeting

PuBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Matt Snyder commented on the sales tax distribution method by stating that he appreciated
the distribution method being ad valorem.

CLOSED SESSION

At 7:33 P.M., Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to enter
Closed Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Land
Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i).

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to resume the open meeting at
8:19 P.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

PossIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to proceed, upon
recommendation of the engineer, with the purchase of the Hwy 321 property contingent upon
substantial progress of acquiring permits as monitored by the County Manager with the intent to
construct an ambulance base at the site and to approve the allocation of $1,500 for a wetlands
permit as required by the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources
(DENR).

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

ADJOURN

Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to adjourn the meeting at
8:21 P.M.
VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Nathan A. Miller, Chairman
ATTEST:

Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board



050714 BCC Meeting

Blank Page



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 3:

APPROVAL OF THE MAY 7, 2014, AGENDA




050714 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

10



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 4:

BOARD OF EDUCATION’S REQUEST FOR LOTTERY FUNDS

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:
Ms. Ly Marze, Finance Director for Watauga County Schools, will request funds from the
Education Lottery Fund. The total amount requested is $35,500 and will be used to shingle a
portion of the roof at Bethel School.

Board action is required to approve and disburse the requested funding.



5/ z:;flp' o [Sre A,

050714 BCC Meeting

APPLICATION Approved:

PUBLIC SCHOOL BUILDING CAPITAL FUND

NORTH CAROLINA EDUCATION LOTTERY pate,

County: Watauga County Contact Person: Ly Marze

LEA: Watauga County Schools Title: Finance Officer
Address: PO Box 1790 Phone: 828-264-7190

Project Title:  Bethel Roof
Location: 138 Bethel School Rd, Sugar Grove, NC 28679

Type of Facility: K-8 School

North Carolina General Statutes, Chapter 18C, provides that a portion of the proceeds of the North
Carolina State Lottery Fund be transferred to the Public School Building Capital Fund in accordance
with G.S. 115C-546.2. Further, G.S. 115C-546.2 (d) has been amended to include the following:

(3) No county shall have to provide matching funds...

(4) A county may use monies in this Fund to pay for school construction projects in local school
administrative units and to retire indebtedness incurred for school construction projects.

(5) A county may not use monies in this Fund to pay for school technology needs.

As used in this section, “Public School Buildings” shall include only facilities for individual schools that
are used for instructional and related purposes, and does not include central administration,
maintenance, or other facilities. Applications must be submitted within one year following the
date of final payment to the Contractor or Vendor.

Short description of Construction Project: Partial shingle replacement to include installing synthetic
underlayment, re-flashing chimney, installing new plumbing boots, and installing ice/water shield

Estimated Costs:
Purchase of Land $

Planning and Design Services

New Construction

Additions / Renovations 35,500.00

Repair

Debt Payment / Bond Payment

TOTAL $ 35,500.00

Estimated Project Beginning Date: June 2014 Est. Project Completion Date: August 2014

We, the undersigned, agree to submit a statement of state monies expended for this project within 60
days following completion of the project.

The County Commissioners and the Board of Education do hereby jointly request approval of the above
project, and request release of $ 35,500.00 from the Public School
Building Capital Fund (Lottery Distribution). We certify that the project herein described is within the
parameters of G.S. 115C-546.

(Si aturi—— Chair, C?mn/ty Commissioners) (Date)
ee AAA LI 4//7//‘:”
(Sigr‘ﬁture — Chair, Board of Education) ! (Déte)

Form Date: July 01, 2011
12



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 5:

APPALACHIAN THEATRE OF THE HIGH COUNTRY REQUEST

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Jonathan Allen, Appalachian Theatre of the High Country, will present information to the
Board about the Theatre and request County support for the project. The Theatre is requesting a
$250,000 grant from the County to be repaid over a five (5) year period. The purpose of the
grant is to assist in the renovation and restoration of the Appalachian Theatre. In addition, Mr.
John Cooper, Campaign Chairman, has invited the Board on a tour of the Theatre the evenings of
May 14" and 15™. Should these dates not work, Mr. Cooper will arrange a private tour at your
convenience. If three (3) or more members wish to attend one of the dates, staff will advertise
that a majority of the Board may be present at one of the dates provided.

Staff seeks direction from the Board.



050714 BCC Meeting

May, 2014

REQUEST FOR SUPPORT FROM WATAUGA COUNTY GOVERNMENT

The Appalachian Theatre of High Country, Inc. respectfully submits this request for a
grant in the amount of $250,000 (payable over a period of up to 5 years) to support the
Campaign to Renovate and Restore the Appalachian Theatre.

STATEMENT OF NEED

If the art we create and support represents who we are as a culture, then the High Country
needs a public arts space to showcase the artistic endeavors of local and regional
performers, and to promote and support arts education in the area. We have a former
theatre used for movies and live entertainment currently sitting empty and unused in
downtown Boone whose size is not replicated by any existing facility in the region. Many
of the performing arts organizations in the High Country lack an appropriate permanent
venue in which to express their artistry.

A renovated Appalachian Theatre in downtown Boone will provide a gathering place, a
unique opportunity to bring music, dance, theatre and media arts to the heart of the High
Country. This venue will be a magnet for local residents and a draw for tourists. Watauga
County has grown significantly in the past decade, and the US Census and economic data
indicate this trend will continue. Our challenge is to absorb that growth while maintaining
the rural essence and soul of the region. The Appalachian Theatre is a vital component in
preserving our heritage while shaping, influencing and sustaining its future.

Through the preservation and use of this venue, we assert our values and express our
identity. We are a community, proud of our Appalachian culture and music and committed
to enhancing quality of life through the arts. By defining, preserving, and promoting our
uniqueness we hold fast to our heritage and help steer our growth while strengthening our
economic vitality.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED ACTIVITIES

A group of leaders from Watauga County, led by John Cooper, President of Mast General
Stores, is conducting a capital campaign to raise support for the purchase, renovation, and
restoration of the 1930's-era Appalachian Theatre on King Street in Downtown Boone.
The Theatre has a rich, colorful history, but now stands gutted and boarded up in the
middle of a rapidly-growing, vibrant area.



050714 BCC Meeting

The Theatre, once it is restored to its original art deco brilliance, will be capable of hosting a variety of events
including lectures, meetings, film series, concerts, medium size theatre and smaller dance productions. With
approximately 600 seats, the Theatre will be able to host almost any small- to mid-sized performing arts event.
Space above the lobby will be used for business meetings, wedding receptions, class reunions, and other events.
The auditorium will have approximately 350 orchestra and 250 balcony seats, and the meeting/reception space
will accommodate up to 250 people. The cost of purchasing the building, renovating and restoring it to its original
state, and three years of underwriting the start-up/operational expenses, is expected to be in the range of $6-8
million.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT AND PARTICIPATION

The Appalachian Theatre programming intends to reflect the diversity and richness of the region and its interests,
including music, dance, theater, film, and media arts, among others. Recognizing that cultural education is a
critical component in preparing young people for the future and sustaining the vitality of our senior populations,
the theatre will welcome and encourage educational programming for all ages. While regional groups will have
prominence, national touring groups and commercial bookings should also find a place at the theatre.

There is no other room of this size available to the public for rent in the local area, and we anticipate this to be one
of the most widely used spaces within the new Theatre. In the winter of 2012, the Board of the Appalachian
Theatre conducted a community-wide survey or potential users and developed a listing that is included below.

Junior Appalachian Musicians (JAM)
Lyric (an ASU poetry slam group)
Mountain Home Music*

Mountain Laurel Quilt Guild

Mountain Music Machine

Northwestern Studios, Inc. (Dance)*
Nth Degree Gallery and Studios

Office of International Studies
Presbyterian-Methodist Children’s Choir

Appalachian Cloggers

Appalachian Expressive Arts Collective
Appalachian Musical Theatre Ensemble
Appalachian Young People’s Theatre*

Artin the Park

ASU Dept. of Athletics*

ASU Dept. of Theatre and Dance*

ASU Hayes School of Music*

ASU Office of Arts and Cultural Programs*
ASU Visiting Writers Series

Beanstalk Little Theatre*

Blowing Rock Community Foundation

Blowing Rock Jazz Society

Blue Ridge Community Theatre*

Cadence Dance Studio at Harvest House
Caldwell Comm. College and Tech. Institute
Cannon Music Camp

Center for Appalachian Studies

Center for Judaic, Holocaust, and Peace Studies
Children’s Playhouse Theatre)

Studio K Dance

Sugar Grove Music Fest

Todd New River Festival

Town of Boone/Cultural Resources Board
Tourism Development Authority

Turchin Center for the Visual Arts
Watauga Community Band*

Watauga County Arts Council*

PEORRROORRREORRRORRE

Harvest House Performing Arts Venue
High Country Dance Studio

High Country Playwrights Forum

High Country Water Media Society
High Country Writers

I Have a Dream Taskforce

In/Visible Theatre*

Jubilee Chorus

PEORREOORRRORRReeRRROeRReeRRRORRRREE

Southern Appalachian Historical Association

Watauga High/Arts Council (Missoula Children's

Children’s Theatre Company (BRCT) @ Watauga Education Foundation (“*Shooting Stars”)
Community Music School at ASU @ Watauga High "Open Mic Night" Club

Churches/Faith Communities @ Watauga High Poetry Club

Crea8tive Drama Workshop at ASU @ Watauga Historical Society

Diversity Celebration @ Wedding, Meeting and Event Planners

Elkland Art School

Grace Academy *Responded to one of the surveys as a potential
Hammer Dulcimer Club Appalachian Theatre user



050714 BCC Meeting

We will measure success for this facility partly by the sheer number of people we serve, along with our fiscal
stewardship and financial viability. But beyond the bottom line is our desire to get as many audience members as
possible to see live performances and to feel a sense of ownership in their venue, an equally important measure of
success for this endeavor. Success also means an array of interesting and diverse program offerings and our
establishment of a strong regional reputation and cultural identity. As stated in our mission, the desire to be a
cultural hub for the High Country and home for our regional arts organizations is paramount and the ultimate
standard for any evaluation of our efforts.

PARTNER ORGANIZATIONS

The TOWN OF BOONE entered into an agreement with the DOWNTOWN BOONE DEVELOPMENT
ASSOCIATION (DBDA) in which the DBDA would purchase the Theatre from the town within 3 years and
renovate and restore the Theatre back to its original 1938 appearance. To assist in this effort, the DBDA formed
the APPALACHIAN THEATRE RENOVATION TASK FORCE, made up of over 5o community citizens who were
enthusiastically interested in seeing the Theatre renovated and restored to its earlier era. The Task Force was
charged with developing construction plans for the Theatre, developing potential programming and operations
for the Theatre, and developing a fundraising plan to purchase the building, pay for renovations and restoration,
and provide supplemental operations funding for the first three years of operation. The new 5o1(c)(3),
"Appalachian Theatre of the High Country, Inc." was formed in late 2012, and has now taken over the work of the
Task Force. The Theatre group is also working with the BOONE DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL RESOURCES and
numerous departments at APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY to explore opportunities for future
collaborations.

LEVERAGED FUNDS

The Campaign to help fund the purchase, renovation, and restoration of the Appalachian Theatre is seeking
support from local, regional, and statewide individuals, foundations, corporations and government entities who
share in our belief that the Appalachian Theatre will contribute to the economic vitality of the High Country
Region. To date, the campaign has raised over $3.3 million in pledges and gifts. A grant of $250,000 from
Watauga County would help to move our campaign forward in a significant way, and would enhance our efforts to
raise additional leadership level gifts to the campaign from the High Country area.

SUSTAINABILITY

This is a one-time request for support in the capital campaign to restore and renovate the Theatre. Future
operations will be funded by operating revenues including memberships, annual campaign drives, etc.

MEASURING SUCCESS

As much as possible given the constraints of available resources, this facility will be one of inclusion, rather than
an exclusive space meant for only a few groups. As stewards of the public trust, we will operate the facility with
efficiency and fiscal responsibility.

Whenever doing so is both feasible and affordable within the resource and personnel limitations of the
Appalachian Theatre, the staff and board will strive to practice environmental responsibility by incorporating
green building techniques for renovation and maintenance, and will seek to promote a carbon-reduced or carbon-
neutral environmental footprint in all aspects of the facility's operations. In addition, where practical and



050714 BCC Meeting

affordable, all renovations, additions, and other modifications to the existing facility will be completed in an
historically sensitive and conscious manner, complying where feasible with the Secretary of the Interior's
Standards for Rehabilitation in order to preserve and promote the theater's unique architectural and social
history. The staff and board will also seek to preserve any surviving, intact, and reparable/maintainable original
materials, characteristics, distinctive features, and other components associated with that history in compliance
with the Secretary's Standards.

Input from the theatre’s stakeholders, be they audience members, volunteers, facility users, artists, volunteers,
donors or community supporters, will be valued and utilized as an essential element of the organization’s
strategic planning process, and in building a strong sense of community investment in the theatre.

In summary, we will measure success for this facility partly by the sheer number of people we serve, along with
our fiscal stewardship and financial viability. But beyond the bottom line is our desire to get as many audience
members as possible to see live performances and to feel a sense of ownership in their venue, an equally
important measure of success for this endeavor. Success also means an array of interesting and diverse program
offerings and our establishment of a strong regional reputation and cultural identity. As stated in our mission, the
desire to be a cultural hub for the High Country and home for our regional arts organizations is paramount and the
ultimate standard for any evaluation of our efforts.

Thank you for your consideration.



Campaign to Renovate and Restore the

mmm@




050714 BCC Meeting



050714 BCC Meeting

20



050714 BCC Meeting

21



050714 BCC Meeting

22



050714 BCC Meeting

23



050714 BCC Meeting

24



050714 BCC Meeting

25



THE GREAT WALTZ _ it '

B

LUISE RAINER \ "‘r
(3 FERNAND GRAVEY o .

~ 4

APPALACHIAN THEATRE of the HIGH COUNTRY

April 2nd, 2014




050714 BCC Meeting

27



050714 BCC Meeting

28



050714 BCC Meeting

29



050714 BCC Meeting

30



050714 BCC Meeting

31



050714 BCC Meeting

32



050714 BCC Meeting

33



050714 BCC Meeting

34



ABSOLUTELY PRICELESS!
AUTUMN 2013

* arohna Mountam Bi:

<Ihe Heart & Soul of the High Country

A Taste of Our Mountain Life «
Awaits You ... Come Sit a Spell,

Relax & Enjoy. g :

£
S
@
o
N
S
o
b
£
E
~/
et
S
@
.E
=
S
Wi
5
®
-

S wonderful read for 16 yearsl™




050714 BCC Meeting

36



050714 BCC Meeting

37



050714 BCC Meeting

38



050714 BCC Meeting

39



050714 BCC Meeting

40



050714 BCC Meeting

41



050714 BCC Meeting

42



050714 BCC Meeting

43



050714 BCC Meeting

44



050714 BCC Meeting

45



old theatre, $1.2 million for a three-year operating budget to allow
for learning and growth and the acquisition of the building.

Renovations include restoring the removed electrical and
plumbing systems, finishing the interior wall surfaces and art deco
style, and new theatre seating that meets ADA requirements. Also,
the original theatre fagade and neon marquee are to be restored.
Those involved in the project are constantly searching for any
items, photos or knowledge of the historical aspects of the theatre.
Recently, two sisters — Pam Fisher and Julie Storie Cline — donated
an original 1938 program from the opening night that belonged
in their mother’s scrapbook. The group also locared some of the
interior light fixtures and pieces of the facade decorative glass that
adorned the outside of the 1938 theatre.

The silent phase of the capital campaign has yet to end, but
John Cooper, chair of the board of trustees for the theater non-
profit, said the end is in sight. “We are getting close to our goal to
go public,” Cooper said. So far, more than 50 percent of the unan-
nounced goal has been raised, and Cooper added thart it was likely
at that time to have the architectural renderings completed, which
he said would reconfirm the due diligence efforts as it pertains to
refurbishing costs.

While it's still too early to begin looking back at this project,
Cooper did say that two thirtgs have stood out to him so far - the
space and the people involved in this effort. Echoing Bettie Bond’s
comments on the ingredients present for success, Cooper specifi-
cally mentioned the talenr, expertise and energy of the group. “We
are thrilled the way it's going ... The theatre is an outstanding space,

so you've got two things coming together perfectly. A wonderful Before the building went into foreclosure, the interior
space and wonderful people,” Cooper said, "all working at the right was stripped of nearly all of the remaining decorative
place art the right time.” ¢ elements from the '30s and '50s. Photos by Jesse Wood

LOWER ENERGY BILL

‘Sparta:336-37
Hickory: 828-267-9944
Newland: 334-898-3884

or visit any of our showrooms located in Blue Ridge Electric district offices
Monday — Friday, B:30 am.- 5 pm.

Register to win a $250 Visa" Gift Card
at GoBlueRidgeEnergies.com

q this card to any of our showrooms and enter to win!

3

December 2013 HIGH COUNTRY MAGAZINE 63 46



050714 BCC Meeting

47



050714 BCC Meeting

48



050714 BCC Meeting

49



050714 BCC Meeting

50



050714 BCC Meeting

51



050714 BCC Meeting

52



050714 BCC Meeting

53



050714 BCC Meeting

54



050714 BCC Meeting

55



APPALACHIAN THEATRE OF THE HIGH COUNTRY, INC.
P.0.Box 11 DTS

Boone, NC 28607
828.262.4532
www.savetheapptheatre.com




050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 6:

PROPOSED AUDIT CONTRACT FOR FY 2014

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Ms. Kathy Brown, Bryce Holder, CPA, PA, will present the contract for conducting the FY
2013-2014 financial audit. The contract is for $40,000 for audit services. The price is $5,400
less than last year due to the County assuming the preparation of the financial statements.

Adequate funds have been budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 proposed budget. Board
approval is requested to accept Bryce Holder CPA’s contract for the Fiscal Year 2013-2014
financial audit in the amount of $40,000.

57



050714 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY

FINANCE OFFICE
814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC 28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007 Fax (828) 265-8006

MEMORANDUM

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager

FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director

SUBJECT: Bryce Holder, CPA, PA Contract for FY 13-14
DATE: April 29, 2014

Attached is a copy of the fiscal year 2013-14 audit contract with Bryce Holder, CPA, PA.
This contract reflects a reduction of $5,400 from last year’s fee as the Finance
Department has transitioned to preparing the financial statements and Holder’s firm
determined less hours are required due to this change. The funding for this contract is
requested in the Finance Department budget in FY 14-15.

Board approval is requested for a contract amount not to exceed $40,000 with Bryce
Holder, CPA, PA to complete the County’s Fiscal Year 13-14 audit.

58



050714 BCC Meeting

LGC-205 (Rev. 2014)

CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS
Watauga County

o Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) if applicable
On this 7th day of May ’ 2014
Auditor: Bryce Holder, CPA,PA Auditor Mailing Address: PO Box 1908, Boone, NC 28607
Hereinafter referred to as The Auditor
and Board of County Commissioners (Governing Board (s)) of _ Watauga County
- hereinafter referred to as the Governmental Unit (s), agree as follows:
Governmental Unit ()
1. The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and

additional required legal statements and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the Governmental Unit (s) for the period
beginning July 1 , 2013 , and ending June 30 , 2014 . The non-major combining, and
individual fund statements and schedules shall be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and an opinion will be rendered in relation to (as applicable) the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate DPCU’s, each major governmental and enterprise fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information (non-major
government and enterprise funds, the internal service fund type, and the fiduciary fund types).

At a minimum, the Auditor shall conduct his/her audit and render his/her report in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. The Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards if required by the State Single
Audit Implementation Act, as codified in G.S. 159-34. If required by OMB Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, the Auditor shall perform a Single Audit. This
audit and all associated workpapers may be subject to review by Federal and State agencies in accordance with Federal and State
laws, including the staffs of the Office of State Auditor (OSA) and the Local Government Commission (LGC). If the audit
and/or workpapers are found in this review to be substandard, the results of the review may be forwarded to the North Carolina
State Board of CPA Examiners (NC CPA Board).

County and Multi-County Health Departments: The Office of State Auditor will designate certain programs that have eligibility
requirements to be considered major programs in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 for the State of North Carolina. The
LGC will notify the auditor and the County and Multi-Health Department of these programs. A County or a Multi-County
Health Department may be selected to audit any of these programs as major.

If an entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit standards - the entity’s auditor
will make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of the group auditor in accordance with AU-6
§600.41 - 8600.42.

This contract contemplates an unqualified opinion being rendered. The audit shall include such tests of the accounting records
and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the circumstances. Any limitations or
restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully explained in an attachment to this contract.

If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing Standards, 2011 revisions,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this engagement, the Auditor warrants that he has met
the requirements for a peer review and continuing education as specified in Government Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees
to provide a copy of their most recent peer review report regardless of the date of the prior peer review report to the
Governmental Unit and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of the audit contract (See Item 22). If the audit firm
received a peer review rating other than pass, the Auditor shall not contract with the Governmental Unit without first
contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a peer review analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements.

If the audit engagement is not subject to Government Accounting Standards or if financial statements are not prepared in
accordance with GAAP and fail to include all disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide an explanation as to why
in an attachment..

It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of audit submitted to the
State and Local Government Finance Division (SLGFD) within four months of fiscal year end. Audit report is due on:

October 31 2014 . |If it becomes necessary to amend this due date or the audit fee, an amended
contract along with a written explanatlon of the delay must be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for approval.

59



050714 BCC Meeting
Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) Watauga County
Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit’s (DPCU) if applicable

7. Itis agreed that generally accepted auditing standards include a review of the Governmental Unit’s systems of internal control
and accounting as same relates to accountability of funds and adherence to budget and law requirements applicable thereto; that
the Auditor will make a written report, which may or may not be a part of the written report of audit, to the Governing Board
setting forth his findings, together with his recommendations for improvement. That written report must include all matters
defined as “significant deficiencies and material weaknesses” in AU-C 265 of the AICPA Professional Standards (Clarified).
The Auditor shall file a copy of that report with the Secretary of the LGC.

8.  All local government and public authority contracts for audit or audit-related work require the approval of the Secretary of the
LGC. This includes annual or special audits, agreed upon procedures related to internal controls, bookkeeping or other
assistance necessary to prepare the Governmental Unit’s records for audit, financial statement preparation, any finance-related
investigations, or any other audit-related work in the State of North Carolina. Invoices for services rendered under these
contracts shall not be paid by the Governmental Unit until the invoice has been approved by the Secretary of the LGC.
(This also includes any progress billings.) [G.S. 159-34 and 115C-447] All invoices for Audit work must be submitted by email
in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC for approval. The invoices must be sent to: lgc.invoice@nctreasurer.com . Subject
line should read “Invoice — [Unit Name]. The PDF invoice marked ‘approved’ with approval date will be returned by email to
the Auditor to present to the Governmental Unit for payment. Approval is not required on contracts and invoices for system
improvements and similar services of a non-auditing nature.

9. In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the provisions of this contract, the Governmental Unit shall pay to the
Auditor, upon approval by the Secretary of the LGC, the following fee, which includes any cost the Auditor may incur from work
paper or peer reviews or any other quality assurance program required by third parties (Federal and State grantor and oversight
agencies or other organizations) as required under the Federal and State Single Audit Acts:

Year-end bookkeeping assistance — [For audits subject to Government Auditing Standards, this is limited to bookkeeping services

permitted by revised Independence Standards]
Audit at our standard governmental billing rates not to exceed $40,000.00

Preparation of the annual financial statements
Prior to submission of the completed audited financial report, applicable compliance reports and amended contract (if required) the
Auditor may submit invoices for approval for services rendered, not to exceed 75% of the total of the stated fees above. If the current
contracted fee is not fixed in total, invoices for services rendered may be approved for up to 75% of the prior year audit fee. The 75%
cap for interim invoice approval for this audit contract is $ 30,000.00 ** NA if no interim billing

10. If the Governmental Unit has outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall include documentation either in the notes to the
audited financial statements or as a separate report submitted to the SLGFD along with the audit report, a calculation
demonstrating compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant. Additionally, the Auditor should be aware that any other bond
compliance statements or additional reports required in the authorizing bond documents need to be submitted to the SLGFD
simultaneously with the Governmental Unit's audited financial statements unless otherwise specified in the bond documents.

11. After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This report shall include
but not be limited to the following information: (a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis, (b) the financial statements and
notes of the Governmental Unit and all of its component units prepared in accordance with GAAP, (c) supplementary
information requested by the client or required for full disclosure under the law, and (d) the Auditor’s opinion on the material
presented. The Auditor shall furnish the required number of copies of the report of audit to the Governing Board as soon as
practical after the close of the accounting period.

12. If the audit firm is required by the NC CPA Board or the Secretary of the LGC to have a pre-issuance review of their audit work,
there must be a statement added to the engagement letter specifying the pre-issuance review including a statement that the
Governmental Unit will not be billed for the pre-issuance review. The pre-issuance review must be performed prior to the
completed audit being submitted to the LGC. The pre-issuance report must accompany the audit report upon submission to the
LGC.

13. The Auditor shall electronically submit the report of audit to the LGC when (or prior to) submitting the invoice for services
rendered. The report of audit, as filed with the Secretary of the LGC, becomes a matter of public record for inspection, review
and copy in the offices of the SLGFD by any interested parties. Any subsequent revisions to these reports must be sent to the
Secretary of the LGC. These audited financial statements are used in the preparation of official statements for debt offerings (the
Auditors’ opinion is not included) by municipal bond rating services to fulfill secondary market disclosure requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and other lawful purposes of the Governmental Unit without subsequent consent of the

60



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.)

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

050714 BCC Meeti
Watauga County eemns

Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit’s (DPCU) if applicable

Auditor. If it is determined by the LGC that corrections need to be made to the Governmental Unit’s financial statements, they
should be provided within three days of notification unless, another time frame is agreed to by the LGC.

If the OSA designates certain programs to be audited as major programs, as discussed in item #2, a turnaround document and a
representation letter addressed to the OSA shall be submitted to the LGC.

The LGC’s process for submitting contracts, audit reports and Invoices is subject to change. Auditors should use the submission
process in effect at the time of submission. The most current instructions will be found on our website:
https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Audit-Forms-and-Resources.aspx

Should circumstances disclosed by the audit call for a more detailed investigation by the Auditor than necessary under ordinary
circumstances, the Auditor shall inform the Governing Board in writing of the need for such additional investigation and the
additional compensation required therefore. Upon approval by the Secretary of the LGC, this contract may be varied or changed
to include the increased time and/or compensation as may be agreed upon by the Governing Board and the Auditor

If an approved contract needs to be varied or changed for any reason, the change must be made in writing, signed and dated by
all parties and pre-audited if the change includes a change in audit fee. This document and a written explanation of the change
must be submitted by email in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC for approval. The portal address to upload your amended
contract and letter of explanation documents is  http://nctreasurer.slgfd.leapfile.net No change shall be effective unless
approved by the Secretary of the LGC, the Governing Board, and the Auditor.

Whenever the Auditor uses an engagement letter with the Governmental Unit, Item #17 is to be completed by referencing the
engagement letter and attaching a copy of the engagement letter to the contract to incorporate the engagement letter into the
contract. In case of conflict between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this contract
will control. Engagement letter terms are deemed to be void unless the conflicting terms of this contract are specifically deleted
in Item #23 of this contract. Engagement letters containing indemnification clauses will not be approved by the LGC.

Special provisions should be limited. Please list any special provisions in an attachment.

A separate contract should not be made for each division to be audited or report to be submitted. If a DPCU is subject to the
audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and a separate audit report is issued, a
separate audit contract is required. If a separate report is not issued and the DPCU is included in the primary government audit,
the DPCU must be named along with the parent government on this audit contract. Signatures from the DPCU Board chairman
and finance officer also must be included on this contract.

The contract must be executed, pre-audited, physically signed by all parties including Governmental Unit and Auditor signatures
and submitted in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC. The current portal address to upload your contractual documents is
http://nctreasurer.slgfd.leapfile.net Electronic signatures are not accepted at this time. Included with this contract are
instructions to submit contracts and invoices for approval as of April, 2014. These instructions are subject to change. Please
check the NC Treasurer’s web site at www.nctreasurer.com for the most recent instructions.

The contract is not valid until it is approved by the LGC Secretary. The staff of the LGC shall notify the Governmental Unit and
Auditor of contract approval by email. The audit should not be started before the contract is approved.

There are no other agreements between the parties hereto and no other agreements relative hereto that shall be enforceable unless
entered into in accordance with the procedure set out herein and approved by the Secretary of the LGC.

Municipal & County Contracts: The Auditor acknowledges that any private employer transacting business in this State who
employs 25 or more employees in this State must, when hiring an employee to work in the United States, use E Verify to verify
the work authorization of the employee in accordance with N.C.G.S. 8§64 26(a). The Auditor acknowledges further that any such
private employer and its subcontractors must comply with all of the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North
Carolina General Statutes (North Carolina’s E-verify law), and that such private employer has a duty under the law to ensure
compliance by its subcontractors. The Auditor further acknowledges that this contract is of the type governed by S.L. 2013-418,
which makes it unlawful for a local government to enter into certain types of contracts unless the contractor and its
subcontractors comply with North Carolina’s E-verify law, and that failure to comply with such law could render this contract
void. The Auditor hereby covenants, warrants and represents for itself and its subcontractors that with respect to this contract the
Auditor and its subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of North Carolina’s E-verify law and that failure to comply with
such law shall be deemed a breach of this contract and may render this contract void.

All of the above paragraphs are understood and shall apply to this contract, except the following numbered paragraphs shall be
deleted: (See Item 16 for clarification). 61



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.)

Watauga County 050714 BCC Meeting

Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit’s (DPCU) if applicable

Communication regarding audit contract requests for modification or official approvals will be sent to the

email addresses provided in the spaces below.

Audit Firm Signature:
Bryce Holder, CPA,PA

Name of Audit Firm
gy Kathleen R. Mitchell

Authorized Audit firm representative name: Type or print

Unit Signatures (continued):

oy N/A

Chair of Audit Committee - Type or print name

**

Signature of authorized audit firm representative

kathy@bryceholdercpa.com

Email Address of Audit Firm:

Date

Governmental Unit Signatures:

sy Nathan A. Miller, Chair

Mayor / Chairperson: Type or print name and title

Signature of Mayor/Chairperson of governing board

Date May 7, 2014

Signature of Audit Committee Chairperson

Date
** |f Governmental Unit has no audit committee, this section
should be marked "N/A."

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE: Required by G.S. 159-28 (a)
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by
The Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act or by the
School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. Additionally, the following
date is the date this audit contract was approved by the governing
body.

sy Margaret Pierce
Governmental Unit Finance Officer: Type or print name

oy N/A

Finance Officer Signature
margaret.pierce@watgov.org

DPCU Chairperson: Type or print name and title

Signature of Chairperson of DPCU if applicable

Date

Email Address of Finance Officer
Date May 7, 2014

(Pre-audit Certificate must be dated.)

Date Governing Body Approved Audit Contract - G.S.
159-34(a )

Board Approval Date — Primary Government

Board Approval Date - DPCU

62



050714 BCC Meeting
Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) Watauga Cou nty

Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit’s (DPCU) if applicable

Steps to Completing the Audit Contract

1. Complete the Header Information — NEW: If a DPCU is subject to the audit requirements as detailed in
the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and a separate audit report is issued, a separate
audit contract is required. If a separate report is not issued for the DPCU and is to be included in the
Primary Government’s audit, the DPCU must be named with the parent government on this Audit
contract. The Board chairman of the DPCU also must sign the Audit contract.

2. Item No. 1 — Complete the period covered by the audit

3. Item No. 6 — Fill in the audit due date. For Governmental Unit (s), the contract due date can be no later
than 4 months after the end of the fiscal year, even though amended contracts may not be required until a
later date.

4. Item No. 8 — if the process for invoice approval instructions changed, the Auditor should make sure he
and his administrative staff are familiar with the current process. Instructions for each process can be
found at the following link. https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Audit-Forms-and-Resources.aspx

5. Item No. 9 — Complete the fee section as in the past but please note:

e The cap on interim payments is 75% of the current audit fee for services rendered if the
contracted fee amount is a fixed amount. If any part of the fee is variable, interim payments are
limited to 75% of the prior year’s total audit fee. If the contract fee is partially variable, we will
compare the authorized interim payment on the contract to 75% of last year’s actual approved
total audit fee amount according to our records. There is a report of audit fees paid by each
governmental unit on our web site: https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Non-Audit-Services-
and-Audit-Fees.aspx - Auditors and Audit Fees.
Please call or email Steven Holmberg of our office at 919-807-2394
steven.holmberg@nctreasurer.com if you have any questions about the fees on this list.

e For variable fees for services, are the hourly rates or other rates clearly stated in detail? If issued
separately in an addendum, has the separate page been acknowledged in writing by the
Governmental Unit?

e For fees for services that are a combination of fixed and variable fees, are the services to be
provided for the fixed portion of the fee clearly stated? Are the hourly rates or other rates clearly
stated for the variable portion of the fee?  See previous bullet point regarding variable fees.

o If there is to be no interim billing, please indicate N/A instead of leaving the line blank.

6. Item No. 16 — If there is a reference to an engagement letter or other document (ex: Addendum), has the
engagement letter or other document been acknowledged by the Governmental Unit and attached to the
contract submitted to the SLGFD?

a. Do the terms and fees specified in the engagement letter agree with the Audit contract? “In case
of conflict between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of
this contract will control.”

b. Does the engagement letter contain an indemnification clause? The audit contract will not
be approved if there is an indemnification clause — refer to LGC Memo # 986.
63



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.)

7.

10.

11.

12.

Watauga County 050714 BCC Meeting

Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit’s (DPCU) if applicable

Item No. 22 — E-verify requirements now apply to all municipal and county contracts, including the
audit contract. There is no e-verify requirement for the audit contract for other types of entities The best
approach to meeting e-verify requirements may be for the municipal or county local government to have
its vendors with 25 or more employees in the State of North Carolina sign a document attesting that they
have complied with the e-verify requirements for their staff and their sub-contractors. This language is
included in Item 22 of the audit contract. Any municipal or county contracts executed Sept 4, 2013 or
later whose audit firm has 25 or more employees in the State of North Carolina will need the
addendum/language and will be returned to the unit if it is not included. If the e-verify requirements do
not apply to your contract, either because you are a city or county but your audit firm has less than 25
employees, or you are an entity to which e-verify does not apply, please mark Item #22 “N/A” or exclude
Item #22 by specifically excluding it in Item #23.

Signature Area — Make sure all signatures have been obtained. The contract must be approved by
your Governing Board pursuant to G.S. 159-34(a). NEW - If this contract includes auditing a DPCU
that is a Public Authority under the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act it must be named
in this Audit contract and the Board chairperson of the DPCU must also sign the Audit contract in the
area indicated. If the DPCU has a separate Audit, a separate Audit contract is required for the DPCU.

Please place the date the Unit’s Governing Board and the DPCU’s governing Board (if applicable)
approved the audit contract in the space provided.

a. Please make sure that you provide email addresses for the audit firm and finance officer as these
will be used to communicate official approval of the contract.

b. Has the pre-audit certificate been signed and dated by the appropriate party?

c. Has the name and title of the Mayor or Chairperson of the Unit’s Governing Board and the
DPCU’s Chairperson (if applicable) been typed or printed on the contract and has he/she signed
in the correct area directly under the Auditor’s signature?

If the Auditor is performing an audit under the yellow book or single audit rules, has year-end
bookkeeping assistance been limited to those areas permitted under the revised GAO Independence
Standards? Although not required, we encourage Governmental Units and Auditors to disclose the
nature of these services in the contract or an engagement letter. Fees for these services should be shown
in the space indicated in Item 9 of the contract.

Has the most recently issued peer review report for the audit firm been included with the contract? This
is required if the audit firm has received a new peer review report that has not yet been forwarded to us.
The audit firm is only required to send the most current Peer Review report to us once — not multiple
times.

After all the signatures have been obtained and the contract and is complete, please convert the contract
and all other supporting documentation to be submitted for approval into a PDF copy. Peer Review
Reports should be submitted in a separate PDF file. These documents should be submitted using the
most current submission process which can be obtained at the NC Treasurer’s web site —
https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Audit-Forms-and-Resources.aspx.

64



050714 BCC Meeting

BRYCE HOLDER, CPA, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
820 STATE FARM ROAD, SUITE F
BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607
TELEPHONE (828) 264-3595
TOLL FREE (800) 456-3595

BRYCE HOLDER. CPA ' MAILING ADDRESS:
KATHLEEN R. MiTCHELL POST OFFICE BOX 1908
: BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607
FAX (828) 264-3586

April 29, 2014

County Commissioners |
Watauga County
Boone, NC 28607

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for Watauga County for the year
ended June 30, 2014. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discreetly presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information, which collectively comprise the entity’s basic financial statements, of Watauga County as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2014. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States provide for certain required
supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement Watauga
County’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part
of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to Watauga County’s RSI in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be
subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

1 Management discussion and analysis.
2. Budgetary comparison schedules.
3. GASB-required supplementary pension information.

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies Watauga
County’s basic financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and will provide an opinion on it in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole: ‘

65



1. Schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards.
2. Individual fund statements.

3. Supporting schedules and statistical data, 050714 BCC Meeting

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented,
in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the
fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole. The objective also includes reporting on:

e Internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with laws, regulations, and the

provisions of contracts or grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect
on the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

* Internal control related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on compliance
with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of
1996 and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other
matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing
of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The OMB
Circular A-133 report on internal control over compliance will include a paragraph that states that the purpose of the
report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and the results
of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Both reports will state that the report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of OMB Circular A-
133, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue
written reports upon completion of out Single Audit. Our reports will be addressed to the management and the
County Commissioners of Watauga County. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be
expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-
matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions on the financial statements or the Single Audit compliance
opinion is other than unmodified, we will fully discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are
unable to complete the audit or are unable to or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or
to issue reports, or may withdraw from this engagement.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, and
all accompanying information as well as all representations contained therein. Management is also responsible for
identifying government award programs and understanding and complying with the compliance requirements, and
for preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards in accordance with the requirements of
OMG Circular A-133. As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your financial statements, schedule of
expenditures of federal and State awards, and related notes. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under

66




‘ 050714 BCC Meeting
Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards. You will agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, schedule of
expenditures of federal and State awards, related notes and any other nonauditing services we provide. You will be
required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, related notes, and that you have reviewed
and approved the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, and related notes prior
to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by
designating an individual, preferable from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience;
evaluate the adequacy and results of those services and accepting responsibility for them.

Management is responsible for (a) establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including internal
controls over compliance, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals
and objectives are met; (b) following laws and regulations; (¢) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that
government programs are administered in compliance with compliance requirements: and (d) ensuring that
management is reliable and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible
for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles; for the fair
presentation in the financial in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and for compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to
persons within the government whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities also include identifying significant vendor relationships in which the vendor has the
responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. Your
responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us
in the management letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to
the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for
informing us about all known of suspected fraud or illegal acts affecting the government involving (1) management,
(2) employees who have significant roles in internal control and (3) others where the fraud could have a material
effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities including informing us of your knowledge if any allegations
of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communication from employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the entity complies
with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. Management is also responsible for taking
timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, or abuse that we report. Additionally, as required by OMB Circular A-133, it is management’s
responsibility to follow up and take corrective action on the reported audit findings and a corrective action plan. The
summary of prior audit findings should be available for our review on August 31, 2014.

You are responsible or preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards {including notes and
noncash assistance received) in conformity with OMB Circular A-133. You agree to include our report in the
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards in any document that contains and indicates that we have
reported on the schedule of federal and State awards. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with
any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards that includes our report thereon OR
make the audited financial statements readily available to intended users of the schedule of federal and State awards
67




: 050714 BCC Meeting
no later than the date the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards is issued with our report thereon.

Your responsibilities including acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible
for the presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133; (2) that you believe the schedule of expenditures and federal and State awards, including its form and content,
is fairly presented in accordance with OMB Circular A-133: (3) that the methods of measurement or presentation
have not changed from those in used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and
(4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement of
presentation of the supplementary information.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged to report on,
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report on the
supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the supplementary
information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary
information that included our report thereon OR make the audited financial statements readily available to users of
the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our report thereon.
Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for
the presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) that you believe the supplementary
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) that the methods of
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or if they have changed, the
reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying
the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishment and maintenance of a process for tracking the status of audit findings
and recommendations.] Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous financial audits, attestation
engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives of this
letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective ‘actions taken to address significant findings and
recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. Youare
also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as
well as your planned corrective actions, and the timing and format for providing that information.

Audit Procedures - General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas
to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriations of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial
reporting, (3} misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to
the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity. Because the determination of abuse

is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting
abuse. '

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit combined with the inherent limitations of internal control and because
we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements or
noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an
audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements, or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not
have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or major programs. However, we will inform the
appropriate level of management of any material errors and any fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of
assets that come to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws

or governmental regulations come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and any material abuse that comes
68




. T . . . . 050714 BCC Meeting
to our attentton. We will include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our responsibility as

auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to matters that might arise during any later
periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and
may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other
assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial
institutions. We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill
you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will also require certain written representations
from you about the financial statements; schedule of federal and State awards; federal and State award programs;
compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by general
auditing standards. '

Audit Procedures - Internal Controls

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the governement and its environment, including internal control,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and
extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls
that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and
to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope that would be
necessary to render an opinion on the internal control, and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on
internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

Asrequired by OMB Circular A-133, we will perform tests of controls to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and
operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance
requirements, applicable to each major federal and State award programs. However, our tests will be less in scope
than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our
report on internal control issued pursuant to OMB Circular A-133.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies. However,
during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related
matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards,
and OMB Circular A-133.

Audit Procedures - Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
we will perform tests of Watauga County’s compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of
contracts and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures will not be to
provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued
pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

OMB Circular A-133 requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the auditee has complied with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements
applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of test of transactions and other applicable procedures
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Watauga County’s major programs. The purpose of those procedures will
be to express an opinion on Watauga County’s compliance with requirements applicable to major programs in our
report on compliance issued pursuant to OMB Circular A-133.

69




Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 050714 BCC Meeting

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request and
will locate any invoices selected by us for testing.

At the conclusion of the engagement we will complete the appropriate sections of and sign the Data Collection Form
that summarizes our audit findings. It is management's responsibility to submit the reporting package (including
financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings,
auditor's reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the designated federal
clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification. If applicable, we will
provide copies of our report for you to include with the reporting package you will submit to pass-through entities.
The Data Collection Form and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of
the auditor's reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless a longer period is agreed to in advance by
the cognizant or oversight agency for audit.

We will provide copies of our reports to the County; however, management is responsible for distribution of the
reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential
information, copies or our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Bryce Holder, C.P.A., P.A., and constitute
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws or regulations and appropriate individuals will be
made available upon request and in a timely manner to a federal or State agency providing direct or indirect funding,
- orthe U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings,
or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to audit
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Bryce Holder, C.P.A., P.A. personnel. Furthermore, upon
request, we may provide copies of sclected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may
intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental
agengcies. :

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the date the auditor's
report is issued or for any additional period requested by grantor agencies. If we are aware that a federal awarding
agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting the audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the
audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

We expect to begin our audit in May 2014, and to issue our reports no later than October 31, 201. Kathy Mitchell is
the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the reports or authorizing
another individual to sign them. Our fee for these services will be based on the actual time spent at an hourly rate of
$56.00 plus other out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction, typing, postage, travel, copies, telephones, etc.)
except that we agree that our gross fee, including expenses, will not exceed $40,000. We also agree that if the
financial statements have not been submitted to the Local Government Commission by October 31, 2014, through no
fault of Watauga County or discretely presented component unit, Watauga County may charge a penalty of $100 per
day until the financial statements are submitted. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work
progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your
account becomes 90 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to
terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written
notification, even if we have not completed our reports. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time
expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on
anticipated cooperation from your personnel, the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered
during the audit, and that management has met its deadlines as agreed to by both parties. If significant additional
time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.

70




. . . 050714 BCC Meeting
Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review

report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters of comment received during the
period of the contract. Our 2013 peer review report accompanies this letter.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant
terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our

engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us,

Sincerely,

&

a

Bryce Holder, C.P.A., P.A.

Response:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Watauga County.

By:

Nathan Miller
Title: Chairman, Watauga County Board of Commissioners

Date:

71




KWH

050714 BCC Meeting

Koonce, Wooten & Haywood, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

SYSTEM REVIEW REPORT

To the Owner of Bryce Holder, CPA, PA
Peer Review Committee of the North Carolina Association
of Certified Public Accountants

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of
Bryce Holder, CPA, PA (the firm) in effect for the year ended May 31, 2013. Our peer review
was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews
established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities, if applicable, in
determining the nature and extent of our procedures. The firm is responsible for designing a
system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of
performing and-reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material
respects. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality
control and the firm’s compliance therewith based on our review. The nature, objectives, scope,
limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review are described in the standards

at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. -

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements performed
under Government Auditing Standards.

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Bryce
Holder, CPA, PA in effect for the year ended May 31, 2013, has been suitably designed and
complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in
conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a
rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. Bryce Holder, CPA, PA has received a peer
review rating of pass.

¥ ,
KOM / wa?ﬂ—« . / (N =
Koonce, Wooten & Haywood, LLP

November 15, 2013

Ralelgh Durham Pittsboro

4080 Barrett Dr_ive 3511 Shannoen Road 10 Sanford Road

Post Office Box 17806 Suite 100 Post Office Box 1399

Raleigh, North Carolina 27619 Durham, North Carolina 27707 Pittsboro, North Carolina 27312
919 782 9265 919 354 2584 919 542 6000

919 783 8937 FAX 919 489 8183 FAX 919 542 5764 FAX

72



050714 BCC Meeting

AICPA Peer Review Program | 4
NCACPA Peer Review Program AICPA
NCACPA Peer Review Program for Non- Members -

Administered by the North Carglina Association of CPAs

February 3, 2014

Laster Bryce Holder, CPA
Bryce Holder CPA PA

Po Box 1908

Boone, NC 28607

Dear Mr. Holder:

It is my pleasure to notify you that on January 23, 2014, the North Carolina Peer Review
Committee accepted the report on the most recent system peer review of your firm. The due
date for your next peer review is November 30, 2016. This is the date by which all review
documents should be completed and submitted to the administering entity.

As you know, the report had a peer review ratmg of pass. The Committee asked me to convey
its congratulations to the firm.

Sincerely,

Mary C. Kelly

Peer Review Coordinator
mckelly@ncacpa.org

cc: David Edwin Boyce

Firm Number: 10091950
Review Number: 349517

Letter ID: 860397

ncaCBA’ North Carolina Association of CPAs

PO Box 80188, Raleigh, NC 27623-0188 » 3100 Gateway Centre Boulevard, Marrisville, NC 27560-9241
Phone (919) 469-1040 « (800) 722-2836 » Fax (919) 378-2000 & www. ncacpa.org

73



050714 BCC Meeting

Blank Page



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 7:

MAINTENANCE MATTERS

A. Bid Award Request for Asphalt Sealing and Striping Project

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, will present bids for asphalt sealing and striping. Two
bids were received with Hickory Sealing and Striping being the lowest responsive bidder in the
amount of $19,961.50. Hickory Sealing and Striping satisfactorily completed previous County
projects. Included in your packets are the areas to be sealed and striped. Adequate funds are
available in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 budget.

Staff would recommend the Board award the bid to Hickory Sealing and Striping in the amount
of $19,961.50 for asphalt sealing and striping.

75



WATAUGA COUNTY
MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT

050714 BCC Meeting

969 West King St., Boone, NC 28607 - Phone (828) 264-1430

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager

FROM: Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director

Fax (828) 264-1473

SUBJECT: Recommendation for Bid Award of Asphalt Sealing and Striping Project

DATE: April 21,

BACKGROUND

2014

Watauga County Maintenance received two bids for asphalt sealing and striping on
March 28, 2014. A second round of bidding concluded April 17" and yielded no

additional bids.

BID SUMMARY

BIDDER TOTAL PRICE FOR TOTAL PRICE FOR
LIQUID ROAD GUARD TOP

Carolina Pavement Care $57,426.00

Roxboro, NC

Hickory Sealing & Striping $19,961.50

Connelly Springs, NC

FISCAL IMPACT

This work was identified in the Asphalt Maintenance Plan and there is money in the FY
13-14 Maintenance Department Budget to pay for this $19,961.50 expense.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the County award this project to Hickory Sealing and Striping.
This company has successfully completed several previous projects for Watauga County

with very good results.

76



050714 BCC Meeting

77



Watauga County, NC Page 1 of 1
050714 BCC Meeting

C()a.’lLauja de-]f’) Law Em-ﬁarceuen% C‘én')Lef’
/! § ¥ F/()c.fjfs &lp L.
Boone AcC o 5607

52, 700 57J5 qukr}’l? 4@& (O(er édf"g/, a//)/@/ 0/‘:‘(/2
L /)a,r/uhj Spece s

78
http://www.wataugacounty.org/ias/arcgismaps/PrintMap.aspx?page Type=Advanced 3/13/2014



050714 BCC Meeting

79



Watauga County, NC

Page 1 of 1
050714 BCC Meeting

Oedvoea Cotrty - Weader Sl Parlts
Loa(iw@ojdrﬁ ot He Zc)rner‘ ot Queen St :jy\c\, Qa;(’.:,r s+,

Dooms, MG S-T601
|, 100 syds o€ PG—V'KJV\.S Krea

31 R.zsu,lc—r '5{)6-09-5

( H—{(, SPa,oe-

80
http://www.wataugacounty.org/ias/arcgismaps/PrintMap.aspx?pageType=Advanced 3/13/2014



Watauga County, NC Page 1 of 1
050714 BCC Meeting

O.Ja-fv-uja Coun‘l‘<7 - ann /Da.(kl}/\j éo?L
Located near fte corner of Queen and a}afxy J‘freef'
Poone, MNC L¥07

11.400 syds of Perkery Area
‘/7 Reje.,lar Spcaes — ﬂumbes/ed

5 errows

81
http://www.wataugacounty.org/ias/arcgismaps/PrintMap.aspx?pageType=Advanced 3/13/2014



050714 BCC Meeting

82



050714 BCC Meeting

SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
COUNTY OF WATAUGA
2014 PARKING LOT SEALCOAT &
PAVEMENT MARKING PROJECTS

Contents
Section
A Notice to Contractors (Advertisement)
B Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions
C Specifications and Project Description
D Proposal Form
E Contract Form

83



050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA
ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS
PARKING LOT SEALCOAT AND PAVEMENT MARKING PROJECTS
SECTION A

Watauga County Building Maintenance Department is seeking bids from persons or firms
interested in submitting bids for sealing and marking parking lots at the following Watauga
County properties: Agricultural Services Center, 971 West King Street, Boone, NC; Law
Enforcement Center, 184 Hodges Gap Road, Boone, NC; Library, 140 Queen Street, Boone, NC;
Water Street Parking Lot, corner of Queen and Water Streets, Boone, NC; Ginn Parking Lot,
corner of Queen and Water Streets; and the Western Watauga Community Center, 1081 Old US
Hwy. 421, Sugar Grove, NC. The scope of this work includes the seal coating of approximately
12,141 SY of asphalt surface and restriping of 279 parking spaces. Bids may be delivered to
Watauga County Building Maintenance Department, 969 West King Street, Boone, NC 28607.
Bids will be accepted until 2:00 pm Thursday, April 17, 2014. Contact Robert Marsh,
Maintenance Director, (828)264-1430 for more information concerning this project.

Each bid must be accompanied by a certified check or Bid Bond in the amount of 5% of

the total amount of the bid. The certified check or Bid Bond is a guarantee that the bidder will
honor his bid and he agrees to forfeit the same should a contract be offered, based

upon his bid and the contract documents, and which the bidder fails to execute within ten (10)
days of the offer.

No bid may be withdrawn for thirty (30) days from the date bids are opened.
Each bidder agrees by the submission of his bid to commence work within ten (10) days of the
issuance by the County of a "Written Notice to Proceed"” and to fully complete the work within

twenty (20) calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed.

Contract documents and other bidding information may be obtained from the Maintenance
Director at Watauga County Maintenance Department, 969 West King Street, Boone, NC 28607.

84



050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND GENERAL CONDITIONS

PARKING LOT SEALCOAT AND PAVEMENT MARKING PROJECTS

SECTION B

Defined Terms:

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

The term "County" means the Owner, the County of Watauga.

The term "Bidder" means one who submits a Bid directly to the County, as
distinct from a sub bidder who submits a bid to a Bidder.

The term "Successful Bidder" means the lowest, qualified, responsible and
responsive Bidder to whom the County shall make an award of the Contract.

The term "Bidding Documents™ includes the Advertisement, these Instructions,
the Bid Form, and the proposed Contract Documents.

The term "Engineer" means the Maintenance Director or the Director’s designee
assigned to this project as the Contract Administrator.

Bidding Documents:

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

Complete sets of the Bidding Documents may be obtained from the Maintenance
Director’s office at Watauga County Maintenance.

Complete sets of Bidding Documents must be used in the preparations of bids.
The County assumes no responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting
from the use of incomplete sets of the Bidding Documents.

The County, in making copies of the Bidding Documents available on the above
terms, does so only to obtain bids on the Work, and does not confer a license or
grant for any other use.

Qualifications of Bidders:

3.1.

Each Bidder must be prepared to submit upon request such written evidence as
may be requested to demonstrate the Bidders qualifications to perform the Work.
Such evidence may include financial data, previous experience and references,
present commitments, and proposed contractors and suppliers. By submitting a

3

85



050714 BCC Meeting

bid, the Bidder certifies that he has the proper license to do the work within and/or
for the County of Watauga, including contractors and business license.

4. Examination of the Contract Documents and Project Sites:

4.1.

4.2.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

It is the responsibility of the Bidder to:
1. Thoroughly examine the Contract Documents,

2. Visit the sites and become familiar with the existing conditions and
the scope of the project work; verify quantities and become
familiar with the surrounding conditions that may affect the cost,
progress, performance or furnishing of the work,

3. Consider all federal, state and/or local laws and regulations that
may affect the cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the
Work,

4, Study and carefully correlate the Bidders observations with the

Contract Documents, and

5. Notify the Engineer of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies found
in the Contract Documents.

The submission of a bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by the
Bidder that the Bidder has complied with every requirement of this section, that
without exception, the bid is premised upon performance and furnishing the work
required by the Contract Documents, using the products, means, methods,
techniques, sequences and/or procedures contained therein, and that the Contract
Documents are sufficient in scope and detail and convey understanding of all
specific products, materials or methods are specified, it is done to establish a
standard of quality, function, dimension or appearance, and is not to restrict
competition. Other products, materials and methods may be used, if approved in
advance by the County.

Bid Form:

The Bid Form is included in the Bidding Documents.
All blanks on the Bid Form must be completed, either in ink or typewritten.
Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate name by the President or

Vice-President, or other corporate officer, when proper authorization to sign is
attached to the bid.

86



10.

050714 BCC Meeting

5.4.  Bids by a partnership must be signed by all partners.

5.5.  Bids submitted on uncompleted bid forms or bids, which contain conditions, can
be deemed to be unresponsive and may be rejected.

Submission of Bids:

6.1.  Bids shall be submitted at or before the time indicated in the Advertisement and at
the place therein stated. Bids sent through the mail shall be enclosed in a second
envelope, both of which shall have the notation "Bid Enclosed” on the exterior.

6.2.  All bids shall be enclosed in an opaque envelope, on the exterior of which, in
addition to the notation "Bid Enclosed", is noted the name of the project, the time
and place of the bid opening, the Bidder’s name, license number (if applicable),
classification and expiration date.

Modifications and Withdrawal of Bid:

7.1. Bids may be modified or withdrawn by an appropriate document executed and
delivered to the place where the bids are to be submitted at any time prior to the
opening of bids.

Bid Opening:

8.1.  All Bids will be opened and, unless obviously non-responsive or otherwise
irregular, read publicly aloud. All bids are then available for inspection by the
public and the other Bidders.

Bids Acceptance and Bonds:

9.1  All bids will remain subject to acceptance for 7 days after bid opening.

9.2 Bonds. Each bid must be accompanied by a certified check or Bid Bond in the
amount of 5% of the total amount of the bid. The certified check or Bid Bond is a
guarantee that the bidder will honor his bid and he agrees to forfeit the same
should a contract be offered, based upon his bid and the contract documents, and
which the bidder fails to execute within ten (10) days of the offer.

Award of the Contract:

10.1. The County reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive any and all

5

87



11.

12.

13.

050714 BCC Meeting

informalities, not involving price, time or changes in the work, and to negotiate
contract terms with the Successful Bidder, and the right to disregard all non-
conforming, non-responsive, unbalanced or conditioned bids. Also, the County
reserves the right to reject in whole or in part the bid of any Bidder if the County
when, in the County's sole opinion, believes that it would not be in the best
interest of the project or the County to make an award either in whole or in part to
that Bidder, whether because the bid is not responsive, the Bidder is not qualified,
of doubtful financial ability, has a history of poor performance and/or difficulty
with previous County work, or fails to meet any other pertinent standard or criteria
established by the County.

10.2. In evaluating bids, the County will consider the qualifications of the Bidders,
whether or not the bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such
alternates, unit prices and other data, as may be requested in the bid form or prior
to the Notice of Award.

10.3. The County recognizes that award of the Contract is dependant on the availability
of funding and, therefore, the County makes no guarantees as to an award of a
contract, to any Bidder. If the contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the
lowest Bidder whose evaluation by the County indicates to the County that the
award will be in the best interest of the County.

Signing of the Agreement:

11.1.  When the County submits to the Successful Bidder the "Notice of Award" and
Agreement for execution, it will be in the number of copies necessary, all of
which shall be signed and shall constitute an original Agreement. Within five
days thereafter, the Successful Bidder shall sign and deliver all copies of the
Agreement to the County, accompanied by a certificate of insurance. The County,
within three days thereafter, shall return to the Successful Bidder a fully executed
copy of the agreement.

Notice of Award:

12.1. The County may give the Successful Bidder a Notice of Award at any time within
the (10) days from the date of opening of bids. The Successful Bidder shall begin
the Work no less than ten (10) days from the receipt of the Notice of Award.

Indemnity

16.1  The contractor will indemnify and save harmless the County, its officers, agents,
servants, and employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal

6

88



050714 BCC Meeting

proceedings, claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees to the
extent resulting from a willful or negligent act or omission of the Contractor, its
officers, agents, servants, and employees in the performance of this Contract;
provided, however, that the Contractor shall not be liable for any suits, actions,
legal proceedings, claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses and attorneys' fees
arising out of the award of this Contract or a willful or negligent act or omission
of the County, its officers, agents, servants and employees.

17. Insurance

17.1

The Contractor shall at all times during the Contract maintain in full force and
effect Employer's Liability, Workmen's Compensation, Public Liability and
Property Damage Insurance, including contractual liability coverage for the
provisions of Indemnity. All insurance shall be by insurers and for policy limits
acceptable to the County and before commencement of work hereunder the
Contractor agrees to furnish the County certificates of insurance or other evidence
satisfactory to the County to the effect that such insurance has been procured and
is in force.

89



050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA

SPECIFICATIONS AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION
PARKING LOT SEALCOAT & PAVEMENT MARKING

SECTION C

1. Scope of the Work:

The work described in these specifications consists of furnishing all labor, materials, tools,
equipment and services and performing all work required to (1) apply a sealcoat to public
parking lots and (2) to apply markings for parking spaces on the public parking lots.

2. Specifications:

2.1

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

Preparation. Paved surfaces on which the emulsified asphalt sealcoat is to be
placed shall be swept and/or blown clean and dry, and be free of loose foreign
materials before placing the seal coat. Grease, oil and gas spots and stains shall be
pre-treated.

Sealmaster, Liquid Road or Blacklidge Emulsions, Inc., Guardtop are the only
seal coatings approved for the work in this contract. Bidders may bid one or both,
Liquid Road or Guardtop on the Bid Form in Section D. Sealcoat product shall be
approved by the Town of Boone.

Placing the sealcoat. Mixing and spreading equipment shall conform to
manufacturer’s requirements. All work shall be performed only when the surface
and ambient air temperatures are at least 50 degrees F and rising and no rain is
anticipated. lIdeally, the surface temperature should not drop below 50 degrees in
a 24-hour period following application. The mix shall be spread in a manner to fill
cracks and achieve a uniform skid-resistant surface. Sealcoat shall be applied in
two coats.

Equipment. A mixing machine equipped with a fines feeder, mixer, water
pressure system and fog type sprayer and the ability to control the application rate
is recommended. The sealcoat application shall be applied by either pressurized
spray application equipment or self-propelled squeegee equipment. Pressurized
spray equipment shall be capable of spraying pavement sealer with sand (or other
mineral aggregate) added. Equipment shall have continuous agitation or mixing
capabilities to maintain a homogeneous consistency throughout the application
process.

90



050714 BCC Meeting

2.5.  Pavement Markings. Public parking lots will be marked to maximize the number
of spaces for automobile parking. Parking stalls will be marked for stall widths of
9 feet and stall lengths of 19 feet. Handicapped parking shall be marked. The
minimum number of handicap parking spaces is 1 space for a lot serving up to 25
cars; 2 spaces for a lot serving 26 50 cars.

2.5.1. Marking Materials. Duron DU9948500, DU1LZM100, DU1YZ100 or
equivalent, applied per manufacturer’s instructions.

3. Method of Measurement

3.1 Upon completion and acceptance of work performed in accordance with
the specifications, and upon presentation of invoices showing quantity of
emulsified asphalt sealcoat applied, payment shall become due and
payable Payment shall constitute full compensation for furnishing,
transporting, and placing the emulsified asphalt sealcoat and pavement
markings for parking spaces and for all labor, tools, equipment and
incidentals necessary to complete the work in full accordance with the
specifications.

91



050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA
Proposal for Parking Lots Sealcoat and Pavement Marking Project

SECTION D

Name of Bidder

In compliance with your legal Notice to Bidders for the County of Watauga 2014 Paving Project,
the undersigned bidder, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State
of , Or a partnership of __, oran individual
doing business as , of the City of, State of

, having examined the specifications and contract forms thereto attached,
and being fully advised as to the extent and character of the work to be performed, and
the equipment to be furnished, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, tools, material, plant
and equipment necessary for the Project.

The undersigned further proposes to perform all work and furnish all equipment in accordance
with the specifications and contract stipulations thereof, within the time limit specified,
for the price so stated below.

COUNTY OF WATAUGA
Proposal for Parking Lot Sealcoat and Pavement Marking Projects

$Amount | $Amount

Location Area | No. Parking Spaces Gallons of | No. of | Liquid Guardtop
(S.Y) Sealant Coats | Road

Agricultural 1,100 17 Regular

Services 2 H/C

Center 4 Arrows

Law 2,700 | 41 Regular Spaces

Enforcement

Center

Library 3,941 | 101 Regular Spaces

5 H/C Spaces
60 spaces are
numbered or have text
Water Street 1,100 31 Regular Spaces

Parking Lot 1 H/C Space

10

92



050714 BCC Meeting

Ginn Parking 1,400 47 Regular Spaces

Lot 5 Arrows

Western 1,900 31 Regular Spaces

Watauga 3 H/C Spaces

Community 1 Do Not Park Zone

Ctr.

Total 12,141 | 279 No. spaces
Gallons
of
Sealant

TOTAL BID

TOTAL BID PRICE FOR SEALCOATING ( LIQUID ROAD) AND PAVEMENT MARKING

DOLLARS AND CENTS

TOTAL BID PRICE FOR SEALCOATING (GUARDTOP) AND PAVEMENT MARKING

DOLLARS AND CENTS

BIDDER understands that the County reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any
informality in bidding.

The bidder agrees that his bid shall be good and may not be withdrawn for a period of FIFTEEN
(15) days after the scheduled closing time for receiving bids.

Upon receipt of written notice of acceptance of this bid, Bidder will execute the formal contract
attached within FIVE (5) days and deliver insurance coverage as required by the
Instructions to Bidders.

BY: Contractor's
Name

11

93



050714 BCC Meeting

Seal--if bid is by a corporation.

12

94



050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
FOR PAVING PROJECTS

SECTION E
This AGREEMENT made this day of ,20__byand
between the County of Watauga, hereinafter referred to as the "County,"
and hereinafter referred to as the

"Contractor," witnesses that the County and the Contractor, in consideration of the mutual
covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows:

Work:

1.1.  The work is generally described as application of an emulsified asphalt sealcoat to
public parking lots and marking of parking lot pavement for automobile parking.
The Contractor shall furnish all labor and materials necessary to facilitate a
finished product as described in the Contract documents. The Contractor shall
also provide a one-year warranty on all materials and workmanship, which shall
commence upon final acceptance of the work by the County.

Engineer:

2.1.  The Project has been initiated by the Maintenance Director who is hereinafter
referred to as the "Engineer," and who is to act as the County's representative,
assume all duties and responsibilities and have the rights and authority assigned to
the Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the
Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Contract Time:

3.1.  The work will be substantially completed within 20 calendar days from the date
when the Contract Time commences.

Contract Price:

4.1.  Contractor's price includes all work incidental to or normally associated with the
type of work in this contract.

4.2.  The County shall pay the Contractor for completion of the work in accordance
with the Contract Documents in current funds, as follows:

$ for sealcoating and pavement marking.

13

95



050714 BCC Meeting

5. Payment Procedures:

5.1.

The Contractor shall submit Applications for payment at the completion of the
work. Applications will be processed by the Engineer, and upon determining the
Contractor's satisfactory completion of the work in accordance with the Contract
Documents, the County will make payment within thirty (30) days from the
request for payment.

6. Contractor's Representations:

6.1.  Inorder to induce the County to enter into this agreement, the Contractor makes
the following representations:
6.1.1. The Contractor has familiarized himself with the nature and extent
of the work, the Contract Documents, site locality, and all local
conditions and Laws and Regulations that in any manner may
affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work.
6.1.2. The Contractor has given the Engineer written notice of all
conflicts, errors or discrepancies that he has discovered in the
Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by the
Engineer is acceptable by the Contractor.
7. Contract Documents:
7.1.  The Contract Documents which comprise the entire agreement between the
County and the Contractor concerning the Work, consist of the following:
1. Cover Sheet,
2. Section A, Advertisement for Bids,
3. Section B, Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions,
4. Section C, Specifications and Project Description,
5. Section D, Proposal,
6. Section E, Agreement
7.2.  There are no Contract Documents other than those listed in the Article 7.1. The

Contract Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as
provided for through a fully executed change order as agreed to by both parties of
this Agreement.

14

96



8.

9.

050714 BCC Meeting

Miscellaneous:

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interest in the Contract
Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of
the party sought to be bound; and specifically, but without limitation, monies that
may become due and monies that are due may not be assigned without such
consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by
law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or
responsibility under the Contract Documents.

The County and the Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns
and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns
and legal representatives in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations
contained in the Contract Documents.

E-verify. The Contractor shall ensure its compliance with Title IV, Subtitle A, of the

Illegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996, Pub. L. 104-
208, 110 Stat. 3009 and Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General
Statutes. Contractor shall provide all documentation which may be requested by the
County, including but not limited to completion of Form [-9 for Employment
Eligibility Verification, affidavits of compliance with this act, and such other
documentation as the County may request from time to time. The Contractor shall
not knowingly hire for employment, employ, or continue to employ an unauthorized
alien.

Other Considerations:

9.1

9.2.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Contractor have signed this
AGREEMENT in duplicate. One counterpart each has been delivered to the
County and the Contractor.

This AGREEMENT will be effective upon its signing of each party thereto and
will be binding until the acceptance by the County of all the work therein.

15

97



050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA CONTRACTOR
By: By:
Title: Title:
(SEAL) (SEAL)
Attest: Attest:
Date: Date:

Address for giving Notices:
County of Watauga

814 West King Street, Suite 205
Boone, NC 28607

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Address for giving Notices:

County Attorney

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget

and Fiscal Control Act.

Margaret Pierce
Watauga County Finance Director

16

98



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 7:

MAINTENANCE MATTERS

B. Bid Award Request for Appalachian Enterprise Center Renovation Project

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Robert Marsh will present the bids received for the Appalachian Enterprise Center
renovation. The renovations are necessary for the High Country Workforce Development Board
to occupy the space. The Board approved a lease with the High Country Workforce
Development Board in which the lease payments will be used to pay for the renovations.

Four (4) bids were received in which Kanipe Construction was the lowest responsive bidder in
the amount of $32,900. The $32,900 includes Alternate Two (commercial doors and hardware)
in the amount of $6,200. While the bid is somewhat higher than originally anticipated, the
increase is due to overall maintenance and repair issues of the building being addressed at the
time of the renovation. These maintenance and repair issues would have been handled over
several years but was more efficient and economical to do now during the renovation process.

Staff recommends the Board award the bid to Kanipe Construction for renovations at the
Appalachian Enterprise Center in the amount of $32,900, which includes the Base Bid of
$26,700 and Alternate Two of $6,200 with funds to come from the administrative contingency
funds.

99



050714 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY
MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT

969 West King St., Boone, NC 28607 - Phone (828) 264-1430
Fax (828) 264-1473

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager
FROM: Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director
SUBJECT:  Appalachian Enterprise Center Bid Award

DATE: April 29, 2014

BACKGROUND

High Country Workforce Development has requested renovations to the space they plan
to occupy in the Appalachian Enterprise Center in June 2014. The renovations are
designed to make their operations more efficient and provide a safer environment for
their staff and visitors.

On April 29™ the Maintenance Department opened bids submitted by four contractors in
response to a Bid Advertisement posted in the Watauga Democrat and on the County

website.

Contractor License # Check or Bid Base Bid Alternate 1 Alternate 2 Total

Bond

Greene Construction 1610 Check $46,431 $6,836 $3,959 $57,226
Company
Boone, NC
Houck Contracting, 49615 Bid Bond $40,676 $8,775 $6,550 $56,001
LLC
Hickory, NC
Kanipe Construction, 72149 Bid Bond $26,700 $4,900 $6,200 $37,800
LLC
Vilas, NC
Lawrence Construction Check $29,931 $6,658 $8,767 $45,356
Boone, NC

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the low bidder, Kanipe Construction for the Base Bid of $26,700 and

Alternate Two (Commercial Doors & Hardware) $ 6,200 for a total bid price of $32,900.
Mr. Kanipe has indicated that he would like to get started as soon as possible in order to

meet the deadline for completing the project.

100



050714 BCC Meeting

SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

COUNTY OF WATAUGA
APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION
PROJECT
Contents
Section

A Notice to Contractors (Advertisement)
B Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions
C Specifications and Project Description
D Bid Form
E Contract Form

101



050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS
APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT

SECTION A

Advertisement for Bids

Watauga County Building Maintenance is seeking bids from persons or firms interested in
submitting bids for minor interior renovations at the Appalachian Enterprise Center, 130 Poplar
Grove Road Connector, Boone, NC 28607. Please contact Robert Marsh, Watauga County
Maintenance Director, for plans and specifications by telephone (828)264-1430 or email
robert.marsh@watgov.org.

There will be a mandatory pre-bid conference Wednesday, April 16, 2014 at 1:00 p.m. at
the Appalachian Enterprise Center, 130 Poplar Grove Road Connector, Boone, NC.

Bids shall be delivered to Watauga County Maintenance, 969 West King Street, Boone, NC
28607. Bids will be accepted until 2:00 pm Tuesday, April 29, 2014. Each bid must be
accompanied by a certified check or Bid Bond in the amount of 5% of

the total amount of the bid.

102


mailto:robert.marsh@watgov.org

050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND GENERAL CONDITIONS

APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT

SECTION B

Defined Terms:

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

The term "County" means the Owner, the County of Watauga.

The term "Bidder" means one who submits a Bid directly to the County, as
distinct from a sub bidder who submits a bid to a Bidder.

The term "Successful Bidder" means the lowest, qualified, responsible and
responsive Bidder to whom the County shall make an award of the Contract.

The term "Bidding Documents™ includes the Advertisement, these Instructions,
the Bid Form, and the proposed Contract Documents.

The term "Engineer" means the Maintenance Director or the Director’s designee
assigned to this project as the Contract Administrator.

Bidding Documents:

2.1

2.2

2.3

Complete sets of the Bidding Documents may be viewed at the Maintenance
Department.

Complete sets of Bidding Documents must be used in the preparations of bids.
The County assumes no responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting
from the use of incomplete sets of the Bidding Documents.

The County, in making copies of the Bidding Documents available on the above
terms, does so only to obtain bids on the Work, and does not confer a license or
grant for any other use.

Qualifications of Bidders:

3.1

Each Bidder must be prepared to submit upon request such written evidence as
may be requested to demonstrate the Bidders qualifications to perform the Work.
Such evidence may include financial data, previous experience and references,
present commitments, and proposed contractors and suppliers. By submitting a
bid, the Bidder certifies that he has the proper license to do the work within and/or
for the County of Watauga, including contractors and business license.

103



050714 BCC Meeting

4. Examination of the Contract Documents and Project Sites:

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

It is the responsibility of the Bidder to:
1. Thoroughly examine the Contract Documents,

2. Visit the sites and become familiar with the existing conditions and
the scope of the project work; verify quantities and become
familiar with the surrounding conditions that may affect the cost,
progress, performance or furnishing of the work,

3. Consider all federal, state and/or local laws and regulations that
may affect the cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the
Work,

4, Study and carefully correlate the Bidders observations with the

Contract Documents, and

5. Notify the Engineer of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies found
in the Contract Documents.

The submission of a bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by the
Bidder that the Bidder has complied with every requirement of this section, that
without exception, the bid is premised upon performance and furnishing the work
required by the Contract Documents, using the products, means, methods,
techniques, sequences and/or procedures contained therein, and that the Contract
Documents are sufficient in scope and detail and convey understanding of all
specific products, materials or methods are specified, it is done to establish a
standard of quality, function, dimension or appearance, and is not to restrict
competition. Other products, materials and methods may be used, if approved in
advance by the County.

Bid Form:

The Bid Form is included in the Bidding Documents.

All blanks on the Bid Form must be completed, either in ink or typewritten.
Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate name by the President or
Vice-President, or other corporate officer, when proper authorization to sign is

attached to the bid.

Bids by a partnership must be signed by all partners.

104



10.

050714 BCC Meeting

55 Bids submitted on uncompleted bid forms or bids, which contain conditions, can
be deemed to be unresponsive and may be rejected.

Submission of Bids:

6.1 Bids shall be submitted at or before the time indicated in the Advertisement and at
the place therein stated. Bids sent through the mail shall be enclosed in a second
envelope, both of which shall have the notation "Bid Enclosed” on the exterior.

6.2  All bids shall be enclosed in an opaque envelope, on the exterior of which, in
addition to the notation "Bid Enclosed", is noted the name of the project, the time
and place of the bid opening, the Bidder’s name, license number (if applicable),
classification and expiration date.

Modifications and Withdrawal of Bid:

7.1 Bids may be modified or withdrawn by an appropriate document executed and
delivered to the place where the bids are to be submitted at any time prior to the
opening of bids.

Bid Opening:

8.1  All Bids will be opened and, unless obviously non-responsive or otherwise
irregular, read publicly aloud. All bids are then available for inspection by the
public and the other Bidders.

Bids Acceptance and Bid Bonds:

9.1  All bids will remain subject to acceptance for forty-five (45) days after bid
opening.

9.2 Bonds. Each bid must be accompanied by a certified check or Bid Bond in the
amount of 5% of the total amount of the bid. The certified check or Bid Bond is a
guarantee that the bidder will honor his bid and he agrees to forfeit the same
should a contract be offered, based upon his bid and the contract documents, and
which the bidder fails to execute within ten (10) days of the offer.

Award of the Contract:

10.1 The County reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive any and all
informalities, not involving price, time or changes in the work, and to negotiate
contract terms with the Successful Bidder, and the right to disregard all non-
conforming, non-responsive, unbalanced or conditioned bids. Also, the County
reserves the right to reject in whole or in part the bid of any Bidder if the County

5

105



11.

12.

13.

10.2

10.3

050714 BCC Meeting

when, in the County's sole opinion, believes that it would not be in the best
interest of the project or the County to make an award either in whole or in part to
that Bidder, whether because the bid is not responsive, the Bidder is not qualified,
of doubtful financial ability, has a history of poor performance and/or difficulty
with previous County work, or fails to meet any other pertinent standard or criteria
established by the County.

In evaluating bids, the County will consider the qualifications of the Bidders,
whether or not the bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such
alternates, unit prices and other data, as may be requested in the bid form or prior
to the Notice of Award.

The County recognizes that award of the Contract is dependent on the availability
of funding and, therefore, the County makes no guarantees as to an award of a
contract, to any Bidder. If the contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the
lowest Bidder whose evaluation by the County indicates to the County that the
award will be in the best interest of the County.

Signing of the Agreement:

111

When the County submits to the Successful Bidder the "Notice of Award" and
Agreement for execution, it will be in the number of copies necessary, all of
which shall be signed and shall constitute an original Agreement. Within ten (10)
days thereafter, the Successful Bidder shall sign and deliver all copies of the
Agreement to the County, accompanied by a Certificate of Insurance.

Notice of Award:

12.1  The County may give the Successful Bidder a Notice of Award at any time within
the ten (10) days from the date of opening of bids. The Successful Bidder shall
begin the Work no less than thirty (30) days from the receipt of the Notice of
Award.

Indemnity

13.1  The contractor will indemnify and save harmless the County, its officers, agents,

servants, and employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal
proceedings, claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees to the
extent resulting from a willful or negligent act or omission of the Contractor, its
officers, agents, servants, and employees in the performance of this Contract;
provided, however, that the Contractor shall not be liable for any suits, actions,
legal proceedings, claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses and attorneys' fees
arising out of the award of this Contract or a willful or negligent act or omission
of the County, its officers, agents, servants and employees.

6

106



050714 BCC Meeting

1.4 Insurance and Bonds

141

The Contractor shall at all times during the Contract maintain in full force and
effect Employer's Liability, Workmen's Compensation, Public Liability and
Property Damage Insurance, including contractual liability coverage for the
provisions of Indemnity. All insurance shall be by insurers and for policy limits
acceptable to the County and before commencement of work here under the
Contractor agrees to furnish the County certificates of insurance or other evidence
satisfactory to the County to the effect that such insurance has been procured and
is in force.

107



050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA
SPECIFICATIONS AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION

APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT

SECTION C

General Notes:

11

1.2

1.3

14

Scope:

2.1

2.2

Completion must be by June 23, 2014.

Work may proceed 24/7 after the Contractor receives Notice to Proceed and
issuance of a Town of Boone Building Permit.

Contractor is responsible for obtaining a Building Permit from the Town of Boone
prior to the commencement of construction.

All bid forms must be completed and submitted with bid.

Electrical

Add switch at back office.

Switch Resource Office lights to Lobby lighting circuit.

Add (8) 20 amp 125 V duplex receptacles in Resource Office — (2) circuits.
Demo electrical in wall for future glass wall and partition wall in future Resource
Office.

Relocate (2) thermostats in Resource Office.

Replace (11) 8’ florescent fixtures with (22) 4 lamp T8 trouffers w/lamps.

General Construction

Install 18 x 30” Tempered glass in (9) existing doors.

Demolish GWB wall for future glass wall at Resource Office.

Demolish GWB wall in future Resource Office.

Install GWB wrapped bulkhead at demolished walls and brace to bar joist above
ceiling.

Install glass partition with doors.

Install new carpet in Resource Office. (Cambridge Commercial — RLY Relay
Stepping Stone AB 213962A06).

Replace 254 s.f. ceiling tiles in hallway. (Match existing tile used in the lower
ceiling @ hallway.)

Patch and paint walls -10,550 s.f. of wall space in Resource Office, (10) Offices,
Hallway, Training Room.

108



050714 BCC Meeting

ALTERNATE 1

Add 1.5 ton mini-split system in server room. Plumb condensate line and install roof curb as
required for a complete and working system. Penetration at roof and flashing must be made by a
Firestone Roofing Product certified contractor.

ALTERNATE 2

Replace (9) doors with 20” x 60 view glass/wood door and oak jambs.

109



050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA

BID FORM
APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT

SECTION D

Name of Bidder

In compliance with your legal Notice to Bidders for the Appalachian Enterprise Center
Renovation Project, the undersigned bidder, a corporation organized and existing under
the laws of the State of , Or a partnership of

or an individual doing business as , of the City of,
State of , having examined the specifications and contract forms thereto

attached, and being fully advised as to the extent and character of the work to be
performed, and the equipment to be furnished, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, tools,
material, plant and equipment necessary for the Project.

The undersigned further proposes to perform all work and furnish all equipment in accordance

with the specifications and contract stipulations thereof, within the time limit specified,
for the price so stated below.

BASE BID

TOTAL BID PRICE FOR APPALACHIAN ENTRPRISE CENTER
RENOVATION PROJECT

DOLLARS AND CENTS

ALTERNATE 1-ADD 1.5 TON MINISPLIT SYSTEM IN SERVER ROOM

ADD DOLLARS AND CENTS

ALTERNATE 2 - REPLACE (9) DOORS WITH 20” X 60” VIEW
GLASS/WOOD DOOR AND KD FRAME

ADD DOLLARS AND CENTS

10

110



050714 BCC Meeting

BIDDER understands that the County reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any
informality in bidding.

The bidder agrees that his bid shall be good and may not be withdrawn for a period of FORTY-
FIVE (45) days after the scheduled closing time for receiving bids.

Upon receipt of written notice of acceptance of this bid, Bidder will execute the formal contract
attached within TEN (10) days and deliver insurance coverage as required by the
Instructions to Bidders.

BY: Contractor's
Name

Seal--if bid is by a corporation.

11

111



050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT

SECTION E
This AGREEMENT made this day of ,20__ byand
between the County of Watauga, hereinafter referred to as the "County,"
and hereinafter referred to as the

"Contractor," witnesses that the County and the Contractor, in consideration of the mutual
covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows:

Work:

1.1.  The work is generally described as minor renovations. The Contractor shall
furnish all labor and materials necessary to facilitate a finished product as
described in the Contract documents. The Contractor shall also provide a one-
year warranty on all materials and workmanship, which shall commence upon
final acceptance of the work by the County.

Engineer:

2.1.  The Project has been initiated by the Maintenance Director who is hereinafter
referred to as the "Engineer," and who is to act as the County's representative,
assume all duties and responsibilities and have the rights and authority assigned to
the Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the
Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Contract Time:

3.1.  The work will be completed by June 23, 2014.

Contract Price:

4.1.  Contractor's price includes all work incidental to or normally associated with the
type of work in this contract.

4.2.  The County shall pay the Contractor for completion of the work in accordance
with the Contract Documents in current funds, as follows:

$ for the renovations described in Base Bid.

$ for Alternate 1.

12

112



050714 BCC Meeting

$ for Alternate 2.

5. Payment Procedures:

5.1.

The Contractor may submit Applications for Payments at thirty (30) day intervals
and a final payment upon the completion of the work. Applications will be
processed by the Engineer, and upon determining the Contractor's satisfactory
completion of the work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the County
will make payment within thirty (30) days from the request for payment.

6. Contractor's Representations:

6.1.

In order to induce the County to enter into this agreement, the Contractor makes
the following representations:

6.1.1. The Contractor has familiarized himself with the nature and extent
of the work, the Contract Documents, site locality, and all local
conditions and Laws and Regulations that in any manner may
affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work.

6.1.2. The Contractor has given the Engineer written notice of all
conflicts, errors or discrepancies that he has discovered in the
Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by the
Engineer is acceptable by the Contractor.

7. Contract Documents:

7.1.

7.2.

The Contract Documents which comprise the entire agreement between the
County and the Contractor concerning the Work, consist of the following:

Cover Sheet,

Section A, Advertisement for Bids,

Section B, Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions,
Section C, Specifications and Project Description,

Section D, Proposal,

Section E, Agreement

ok whE

There are no Contract Documents other than those listed in the Article 7.1. The
Contract Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as
provided for through a fully executed change order as agreed to by both parties of
this Agreement.

13

113



050714 BCC Meeting

8. Miscellaneous:

8.1.  No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interest in the Contract
Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of
the party sought to be bound; and specifically, but without limitation, monies that
may become due and monies that are due may not be assigned without such
consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by
law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or
responsibility under the Contract Documents.

8.2.  The County and the Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns
and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns
and legal representatives in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations
contained in the Contract Documents.

9. Other Considerations:

9.1. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Contractor have signed this
AGREEMENT in duplicate. One counterpart each has been delivered to the
County and the Contractor.

9.2. This AGREEMENT will be effective upon its signing of each party thereto and
will be binding until the acceptance by the County of all the work therein.

14

114



050714 BCC Meeting

COUNTY OF WATAUGA CONTRACTOR
By: By:
Title: Title:
(SEAL) (SEAL)
Attest: Attest:
Date: Date:
Address for giving Notices: Address for giving Notices:
County of Watauga

814 West King Street, Suite 205
Boone, NC 28607

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
and Fiscal Control Act.

Margaret Pierce
Watauga County Finance Director

15

115



050714 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

116



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 7:

MAINTENANCE MATTERS

C. Bid Award Request for Medic Base Architectural Services

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

At the Boards last meeting, approval was granted to purchase 13 acres off US Highway 321 for
the new ambulance station. During the due diligence period for the purchase of the property, the
County conducted interviews for potential architects for the project. Staff sent out an RFQ for
architects in which two (2) proposals were received. The interview panel consisted of
Commissioner Kennedy, the County Manager, and Robert Marsh. Upon completion of the
interviews, the committee was in agreement to recommend Innovative Designs from Raleigh,
NC. The recommendation was based on Innovative Designs qualifications and past experience
with the County.

Staff would recommend the Board employ Innovative Designs as the architects for the new
medic base and authorize staff to negotiate a contract to be approved by the Board at a future
meeting.

117



050714 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY
MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT

969 West King St., Boone, NC 28607 - Phone (828) 264-1430
Fax (828) 264-1473

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager
FROM: Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director
SUBJECT: Medic Base #3 Recommendation for Architectural Design Services

DATE: April 29, 2014

BACKGROUND

The Board of County Commissioners directed County staff to form a search committee
and begin a qualification based search for design services for the proposed Medic Base
#3 at the February 21% Board Meeting. The Board was represented by Billy Kennedy,
County Commissioner and included Deron Geouque, County Manager and Robert Marsh,
County Maintenance Director.

A notice for design services was sent to local architects and posted on the County
website. Innovative Designs, Raleigh, NC and WBS, Hillsville, VA responded with
letters of interest. The committee interviewed both firms.

RECOMMENDATION

The Search Committee recommends the selection of Innovative Designs for consideration
by the Board as designer for the new Medic Base. This recommendation is based on the
qualifications they presented which detailed their experience and qualifications as an
architectural design firm. Innovative Design has successfully completed other
architectural design work for the County.

Unfortunately, the Committee is unable to present a contract for design service at this
time due to the legal requirement of the qualification based selection process. If the
Board is in agreement with the selection, then a fee and contract can be negotiated with
the firm. The Committee will return with a contract stating the scope of architectural
services and a fee for Board approval.

118



050714 BCC Meeting

Watauga County, North Carolina
Request for Statements of Qualifications
Architectural Services
Medic Base 3

Watauga County, North Carolina is seeking Statements of Qualifications (SOQ) from well-qualified
architectural firms to provide services associated with a new Medic Base. Submittals will be received
until 2:00 p.m. on Thursday, March 27, 2014 at the Watauga County Building Maintenance Office, 969
West King Street, Boone, NC. Submittals, one original and three copies, must be submitted in a sealed
envelope/box labeled “Architectural Services — Medic Base 3”, along with the submitter’s name and
address clearly indicated on the envelope/box. Instructions for preparing the Statement of
Qualifications are provided herein.

All questions concerning the Request shall be submitted in writing to Robert Marsh at
robert.marsh@watgov.org no later than March 20, 2014. A copy of the Request for Statements of

Qualifications is available on the County’s website, wataugacounty.org.

BACKGROUND

Watauga County identified a need to add an Ambulance Base in the western area of Watauga County for
the purpose of improving ambulance response time for the area served. To achieve this goal, the Board
of County Commissioners selected a site near the intersection of Highways 321/421, PIN
#1982231215000, for the construction of a two bay ambulance base.

Preliminary programming by staff has determined that the base needs to include the following
elements: Ambulance bay 1,504sf; crew quarters 1,600sf; radiant heated floors throughout with forced
air heat pump in crew quarters; domestic water conditioning for ph, sulphur and hardness; sloped
standing seam metal roof; snow guard ice detention system; brick exterior; fire sprinkler system with
storage tank; backup power generator. The County has estimated expenses for this project to be
$512,560 for construction and design fees.

In February 2014 the County hired Valor Engineering, PLLC to provide a Site Assessment and Civil
Engineering Report as part of the due diligence work associated with the land purchase. A complete Soil
and Erosion Control Plan with topography and proposed site improvements are part of the services that
will be provided by Valor Engineering. The Architect shall review the Civil Engineering Report and may
use this work in the preparation of the drawings. Completion date for the Site Assessment is scheduled
for April 15, 2014. Questions concerning the scope of the Civil Engineer’s report should be directed to
Jason Gaston, President, Valor Engineering (828)262-9807 or by email jason@valorengineering.com.

The County requires all plans complete by July 1, 2014 and a Bid Advertisement ready for publishing at
that time.

119


mailto:robert.marsh@watgov.org

050714 BCC Meeting

The Architect shall provide complete design services including:

e Programming with County and Medic Staff.

e Schematic Design and Probable Cost Estimate.

e Schematic Presentation to the Board of County Commissioners.

e  Working Drawings.

e Bidding and evaluation of bids with presentation to the Commissioners.

e Project Management (bidding, review of submittals, preconstruction meeting, review of pay
applications, review request for change orders, monthly inspections, review of test and
balancing report and commissioning of HVAC equipment, hard copy and CD format as-built
drawing, compile and submit three written copies of warranty and O&M Manuel and on CD
format) .

e Prepare contractor’s punch list.

e Final Inspection and acceptance of work.

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Firms desiring to submit a Statement of Qualifications must meet the following criteria:

e Have at least five years’ experience with similar projects.

e Have completed at least three similar size and complexity projects in the past five years.

e Have a proven track record of delivering projects on time and at/or below budget.

e Have experience designing LEED certified buildings.

e Have all necessary licenses/certifications to conduct business in North Carolina or be capable of
demonstrating the ability to secure them in a timely manner, and have experience working in
the region.

Statements of Qualifications must be submitted in three ring binders or spiral bound, and tabbed for
each section outlined below. The total length of the submittal, excluding any cover letter, table of
contents, or appendices, should be no more than 30 pages. Font size should be no smaller than Arial, 11
point. Please provide submittals in the sequence of the following major headings described below.
Supplemental materials providing additional information may be included as appendices.

Experience

Please provide a detailed description of your firm’s experience for the past ten years. If there are
additional affiliated entities that are part of the team, please detail their experience as well. Please
include:

e Firm name, address, telephone number, fax number, e-mail address, and contact person(s).
e Year in which the firm was established and any former names under which the firm operated.

120



050714 BCC Meeting

e Names and office location of all personnel who will be assigned to this project. Names of key
personnel who would be available to work in this project.

e Résumés of Project Manager and design team members for this project. Professional
affiliations and licenses of key personnel, including LEED certifications.

e Understanding of the scope of work.

e Approach to the design process.

e Unique qualifications or work methodology.

e Track record of bringing in projects on time and within budget.

e Provide a description of the systems and methods employed by your firm to effectively manage
the project including a discussion of goal setting, managing client expectations,
communications, quality control, managing project schedule and costs within prescribed
budgets, and change management.

In addition to the overall experience description, please provide details on three similar size and
complexity projects to include:

e Owner’s name and address.

e Owner’s contact person and telephone number.

e Title of project.

e Description of project.

e Date of project initiation and date of completion.

e Description of services provided.

e Key building elements, i.e., HVAC systems and controls, stand-by power systems, conveyance
systems, structural system, roofing system, exterior building materials, security systems, interior
finishes, “green” elements, LEED classification if any, building class, etc.

e Energy conservation considerations.

e Interior and exterior photographs.

e Final construction cost per square foot. Please indicate the following cost components
individually: land, building shell, site work cost, up fit and soft costs.

SELECTION PROCESS

Maintaining the integrity of the RFQ process is of paramount importance for the County. To this end,
please do not contact any members of Watauga County or its staff regarding the subject matter of this
RFQ until selection has been made, other than the County’s designated contact person identified in the
introduction to this RFQ. Representatives of Watauga County will read, review and evaluate the
qualifications independently based on the evaluation criteria. Watauga County reserves the right to
conduct interviews with a shortlist of selected respondents.

Reputation, Quality and Experience of the Firm

e How substantial is the firm’s experience in designing projects of comparable size and
complexity?

121



050714 BCC Meeting

e Does the firm have experience designing Medic Base buildings?

e Did all references listed have a favorable experience with the firm? Would they work with them
again? How comparable was their project?

e Does the firm have all necessary licenses/certifications to conduct business in North Carolina or
be capable of demonstrating the ability to secure them in a timely manner?

e Does the firm have a proven track record of delivering projects on time and at/or below budget?

e Did the firm demonstrate an understanding of the specific needs of Watauga County?

Proposed Project Team

e Does the proposed project staff appear to have the appropriate experience and capabilities to
perform the specified project?

e Does the firm’s organizational structure support the project team and project objectives? What
systems/processes does the firm employ to assure knowledge sharing so we get the benefit of
the firm’s experience and not just the experience of the individuals assigned to the project?

e  What s the availability of key team members to participate in this project?

Overall Approach and Methodology

The SOQ needs to provide a clear and concise answer to the question — Why should Watauga County
select your firm for this project?

e What is the firm’s approach to managing the construction budget, regulatory process and public
involvement process? How has the firm done this in past projects?

e Does the team’s project approach provide for effective project management? What measures
will be used to validate a successful project outcome?

e Does the team’s project approach keep the best interest of the County in the forefront of the
project?

122



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 7:

MAINTENANCE MATTERS

D. Contract Renewal Request for Parks and Recreation Weekend Janitorial Services

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Marsh will request the Board award the contract for parks and recreation weekend janitorial
services to Estate Maintenance in the amount of $22,365. Estate Maintenance was the only
contractor to submit a proposal and currently provides most of the services requested. The
existing contract with Estate Maintenance is set to expire June 30, 2014. Adequate funds have
been proposed in the recommended Fiscal Year 2014-2015 budget.

Board action is requested to approve the contract with Estate Maintenance in the amount of
$22,365 for parks and recreation weekend janitorial services to be effective July 1, 2014.

123



050714 BCC Meeting

NATAUGA COUNTY
MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT

969 West King St., Boone, NC 28607 - Phone (828) 264-1430
Fax (828) 264-1473

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager
FROM: Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director
SUBJECT: Parks and Recreation Weekend Janitorial Contract

DATE: April 30, 2014

BACKGROUND

The Maintenance Department solicited bids for janitorial services on the County website
April 16th to April 24™, 2014. Estate Maintenance submitted a bid of $22,365. This was
the only bid received. The contract term is five years for a stipulated sum with no annual
increase.

The scope of the contract includes a Saturday and Sunday morning cleaning of all of the
County recreation facility restrooms and trash pickup at the ball fields, adjacent parking
lots as well as the playgrounds, bike park, canoe access and Howard’s Knob Park. The

vendor supplies his own vehicle and cleaning supplies.

Currently, Estate Maintenance has been providing most of the services within the scope
of the contract on an annual basis. The current contract expires June 30, 2014.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the County award the bid for weekend janitorial service to Estate
Maintenance for $22,365. Estate Maintenance has always provided very good service
and they are extremely dependable and trustworthy.

FISCAL IMPACT

If approved, the cost for this service through FY14-15 will be included in the
Maintenance Department Budget Request.

124



050714 BCC Meeting

Request for Quotes
Watauga County Maintenance
Weekend Custodial Service

Watauga County is requesting quotes from persons or firms interested in providing custodial services on
weekends at County park facilities from approximately April 1* through October 31st. Contract will
begin July 1, 2014 and run through June 30, 2019. Questions may be directed to Watauga County
Maintenance at 828-264-1430 or email nona.lawrence@watgov.org.

Contractors shall provide Certificates of Insurance to the County for workers’ compensation coverage
and general liability insurance.

Scope of Work
Properties to be serviced each Saturday and Sunday from April 1* until October 31%.

Howard’s Knob Park (Open at 8:30 a.m. and close at 7:30 p.m. May 1 through October 20)
Ted Mackorell Soccer Complex
Brookshire Park

Rocky Knob Park

Optimist Park

Industrial Fields

Complex (includes tennis courts)
Tot Lot Playground

Old Cove Creek Gym & Field
Mountaineer Ruritan

321 Canoe Access

Clean restrooms — Sanitize fixtures, spot clean mirrors, restock paper supplies, sweep floors,
empty trash receptacles and reline containers.

Grounds — Pick up trash on grounds and empty trash barrels, reline containers. Spot clean table
tops and sweep pavilions if needed.

Contractor shall provide all cleaning supplies, equipment and vehicles. The County shall provide
all paper products, can liners and hand soap. The County will also provide use of dumpsters for trash

disposal. All work must be complete by 10:00 a.m.

Quotes will be accepted until 2:00 p.m., Thursday, April 24, 2014 at Watauga County Maintenance, 969
West King Street, Boone, NC 28607.

125


mailto:nona.lawrence@watgov.org

050714 BCC Meeting

Estate Maintenance Company

PO BOX 1418
BLOWING ROCK, NC 28605
828-264-7441

APRIL 23, 2014

WATAUGA COUNTY FINANCE OFFICE
814 WEST KING STREET ROOM 216
BOONE, NC 28607

ATTENTION: NONA LAWRENCE

“CONTRACT PROPOSAL”

ESTATE MAINTENANCE PROPOSES TO PROVIDE WEEKEND CUSTODIAL
SERVICES FOR COUNTY PARK FACILITIES. THIS PRICE WILL BE EFFECTIVE
FOR 5 YEARS STARTING JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING JUNE 30,2019. THE
PROPOSED AMOUNT WILL BE $22,365.00 ANNUALLY. THIS WOULD BREAK
DOWN TO BE $355.00 PER DAY AND INCLUDES 3 HOLIDAYS PER YEAR.

THANK YOU
DARREN WALLACE

126



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 8:

TAX MATTERS

A. Monthly Collections Report

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be
available for questions and discussion.

The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required.

127



050714 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

128



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 8:

TAX MATTERS

B. Refunds and Releases

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:
Mr. Warren will present the Refunds and Releases Report.

Board action is required to accept the Refunds and Releases Report.

129



050714 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

130



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 8:

TAX MATTERS

C. Unpaid Real Estate Tax Bills

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Warren will present the unpaid real estate tax bills for Board consideration and
advertisement.

Board action is required to authorize Mr. Warren to advertise the unpaid real estate tax bills for
2013.

131



050714 BCC Meeting

WATAUGA COUNTY TAX ADMINISTRATION

Courthouse, Suite 21 — 842 West King Street — Boone, NC 28607
(828) 265-8021 — FAX (828) 264-3230

MEMORANDUM

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager
FROM: Larry Warren, Tax Administrator
SUBJECT: 2013 Unpaid Real Estate Tax-bills

DATE: 04/30/2014

The 2013 report of unpaid taxes, which represent liens on real property, needs to be presented to the Board of
County Commissioners at the May 6th meeting. The current 2013 amount of outstanding taxes for Watauga County
is $919,467.79. Upon receipt, the Board needs to order the Tax Collector to advertise these tax liens. According to
the North Carolina statutes, the advertisement has to be published between March 1% and June 30™. We plan to
advertise during the month of May, one time in the local newspaper, Watauga Democrat. Please let me know if you
have any questions.

132



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 9:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Presentation of the FY 2015 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The County Manager will present the FY 2015 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for your review
prior to discussion during the upcoming budget work sessions.

133



050714 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

134



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 9:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

B. Presentation of the Manager’s FY 2015 Recommended Budget

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The Manager will present his Recommended FY 2015 Budget at the meeting and review
highlights. If you have questions, please feel free to call or discuss at the budget work sessions
scheduled for 4:00 P.M. on Thursday, May 8, 2014, and Tuesday, May 13, 2014.

The Recommended Budget will be available for public inspection on the County’s website, in
the County Manager’s Office, and at the public libraries located in Boone, Blowing Rock, and
the Western Watauga Community Center.

A public hearing will be held on May 20, 2014, at 6:00 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the
proposed budget.

135



050714 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

136



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 9:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

C. Proposed Property & Liability Insurance and Workers Compensation Renewals
Request

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Renewal rates for property and liability insurance and workers compensation will be presented
for the Board’s consideration. The rate for property and liability is $239,865, or a $7,650
decrease, and the rate for workers compensation is $279,708 or a 14.52% increase. The primary
reason for the increase in workers compensation was the substantial rise in the rate modifier due
to claims experience. Based on prior years claims experience staff is recommending increasing
the property deductible from $1,000 to $5,000.

Board approval is requested to accept the renewals for property and liability insurance and
workers compensation from the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners
(NCACC), in the amount of $239,865 and $279,708 respectively.

137



NoRrRTI

CAROILINA

AssOCIATION OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

County or Entity:

RENEWAL ESTIMATE

Coverage
Property

General Liability

Automobile Liability
Physical Damage

Replacement Cost

Crime

Public Officials Liability

Law Enforcement Liability

Employment Practices

Liability

WATAUGA COUNTY
JULY 1,2014 TO JULY 1, 2015

Contract Limit
Insured Values

$2,000,000

$2,000,000

Actual Cash Value

$2,000,000

$250,000

$2,000,000

$2,000,000

$2,000,000

Deductible

$1,000

$0

$1,000

$1,000

$5,000

$5,000

$5,000

050714 BCC Meeting

NCACC Risk Management Pools
Liability and Property

Date of Quote

Renewal Exposure

Total Property Values

Total Inland Marine Values

Population (County)
Payroll (Entity)
Fire Legal Additional Limits

Number of EMTs

Total # of Vehicles (Liability,

Total # of Vehicles (PD)

Value of Selected Veh.

Money on Premises

Great than $250,000

Population (County)
Payroll (Entity)

Class A Employees
Class B Employees
Class C Employees
Population (County)

Payroll (Entity)

$122,891,134
$7,671,098

Total
52,472

$0
$0
0

Total
122

122
$0

Total

Total
52,472

$0
Total
45
29
15

Total
52,472

$0

Total

Annual Estimated Contribution

4/30/14

Contribution
97,023

6,057

$103,080
15,908

0
0
0

$15.908
34,738

17,370
$0

$52,108
$968

$0

$968
18,228

0
$18,228
25,353
8,188
2,112

$35,653
13,920

0

$13,920

138



050714 BCC Meeting

NorTH CAROLINA NCACC Risk Management Pools
AssociaTioN o COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Liability and Property
Payment Plan Available: Liability & Property Pool Quoted on 4/30/2014

County or Entity: WATAUGA COUNTY

| Payment Plan: (due on or before August 1, 2014)

| understand that changes made to the exposures subsequent to submission of the
renewal application may result in changes to the Estimated Contribution:

Accepted by:
Signature

Printed Name

Print Title

Date
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Government Budget and Fiscal Control
Act.
Financial Officer

Signature

Date

NCACC 4/30/2014139



050714 BCC Meeting

NorTH CarROrLINA NCACC Risk Management Pools
Assoc1ATION OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Worker's Compensation

RENEWAL ESTIMATE JULY 1, 2014 TO JULY 1, 2015

Member: WATAUGA COUNTY

Limits ~ Coverage A : Workers Compensation: Statutory
Coverage B: Employer's Liability: $2,000,000

Class Annual
Code Description Remuneration
7710 FIREFIGHTERS & DRIVERS PATROL OR PROTECTIVE CORPS $103,993
7720 SHERIFF'S DEPT. OFFICERS & DRIVERS $2,833,091
8810 CLERICAL $4,501,542
8831 HOSPITAL VETERINARY & DRIVERS $79,924
8835 NURSING- HOME HEALTH , PUBLIC & TRAVELING ALL EMPLO $223,851
9015 BUILDINGS - NOC $650,255
9061 CLUBS & SENIOR CENTERS: NOC & CLERICAL $199,603
9102 PARK NOC ALL EMPLOYEES/DRIVERS $523,222
9403 ASHES GARBAGE OR REFUSE COLLECTION & DRIVERS $400,434
9410 MUNICIPAL TOWNSHIP COUNTY OR STATE EMPLOYEES NOC $1,957,687
9999 VOLUNTEERS (NCACC designated class) $10,725

Total Estimated Payroll 11

on:

Modified
Rate
4.226
4.038
0.358
1.571
3.569
4.576
1.562
2.800
9.417
2.348
40.442

2014-2015 Contribution:

NCACC

Modified
Contribution
$4,395
$114,400
$16,116
$1,256
$7,989
$29,756
$3,118
$14,650
$37,709
$45,966
$4,337

$279,708

4/30/201 440



050714 BCC Meeting

NortTH CAROILINA NCACC Risk Management Pools
AssociaTiON oF CouNTY COMMISSIONERS Worker’s Compensation

Payment Plan Available: Workers' Compensation Pool Quoted on 4/30/2014
County or Entity: WATAUGA COUNTY

Annual Payment Plan: (due on or before August 1, 2014)
$279.708

| understand that changes made to the exposures subsequent to submission of the
renewal application may resuit in changes to the Estimated Contribution:

Accepted by:
Signature

Printed Name

Print Title

Date
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Government Budget and Fiscal Control
Act.
Financial Officer:

Signature

Date

NCACC 4/30/201 4141



050714 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

142



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 9:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

D. Request for Use of Old High School Parking Lot

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Tushar Bajaj, Friends Forever, is requesting the use of the old high school parking lot on
May 23" from 2:00 PM until 2:00 PM on May 26™. The group is organizing a large event at the
International Center for Mediation. The Art of Living Foundation International Center for
Meditation and Well Being previously requested and was granted permission to rent the parking
lot at the old high school. The Center was charged $300 a day for the use of the parking lot.

Should the Board wish to grant Friends Forever’s request, staff would recommend a fee of $300
per day for a total amount of $1,200.

Staff seeks direction from the Board.

143



050714 BCC Meeting

Anita.Fogle

From: Deron.Geouque

Sent: Thursday, April 17, 2014 11:38 PM

To: Anita.Fogle

Subject: Fwd: Old School Parking lot - Reservation Request

5-6-2014 agenda.

Deron Geouque

Watauga County Manager

814 West King Street

Boone, NC 28607

(P) 828-265-8000

(F) 828-264-3230

Email Deron.Geouque@watgov.org

Begin forwarded message:

From: Tushar Bajaj <tusharbajaj@gmail.com>

Date: April 17, 2014 at 3:19:22 PM EDT

To: <deron.geougue@watgov.org>

Subject: Old School Parking lot - Reservation Request

Hello Deron - Thank you for taking the time to speak with me this afternoon.

I work with a Non-Profit organization "Friends Forever" and we are putting together a huge event at
International Center for Meditation in Boone, NC over the Memorial Day weekend. We expect a crowd
of over 1300 people coming in town for this event. It requires us to arrange for overflow parking spots to
a nearby place. The Retreat facility in Boone mentioned that | should reach out to you with this request.

We would need the parking lot from 2 PM onwards on May 23rd until 2 PM on May 26th when the
event ends.

Please let me know if you have any questions.
Regards
Tushar Bajaj

512.535.3747

144



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 9:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

E. Boards and Commissions

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Watauga County Economic Development Commission

The Watauga County Economic Development Commission has four terms set to expire in June.
Mr. Ed Evans, Mr. Tommy Sofield, and Mr. Ben Shoemake are each eligible and available for
reappointment. The fourth seat is not eligible for reappointment due to having served two
consecutive terms.

Region D Development Corporation

The Region D Development Corporation is a Certified Development Company that assists the
US Small Business Administration in delivering small business loans to the region. They also
assist in marketing and packaging loans for small businesses throughout the region. Per their
bylaws, each county is required to appoint four persons to serve as members of the Development
Corporation in May of each year. Representative categories are local government (1), private
lending institution (1), and community organization or a business organization (2). Following is
a list of current appointees: Mr. John Spear (Local Government); Mr. Brian Crutchfield
(Community Organization); Mr. Jim Furman (Business Organization); and Mr. Brian Riggins
(Private Lending Institution). You may wish to reappoint those serving or appoint new
members.

Town of Boone Planning Commission

The Boone Town Council has recommended appointment of Mr. Thomas Purpur as an ETJ
member of the Town of Boone Planning Commission.

Town of Boone Board of Adjustment

The Boone Town Council has recommended appointment of Dr. Robert (Bob) Goddard as a
Regular ETJ member of the Town of Boone Board of Adjustment.

All the above are first readings and, therefore, no action is required at this time.

145



050714 BCC Meeting

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman

Sent: Monday, April 28, 2014 11:21 AM

To: Deron.Geouque

Cc: Anita.Fogle

Subject: Boards and Commissions

Deron,

Four terms on the Economic Development Commission will expire in June, as follows:
Ed Evans

Tommy Sofield

Ben Shoemake

Mary Hall

These are three year terms. By rule, members can serve two consecutive appointed terms. Mr. Evans, Mr. Sofield, and Mr.
Shoemake have each served one term and would like to be reappointed to another. Mrs. Hall has served two consecutive terms,
so is not eligible for another. Thanks.

Joe

Joseph A. Furman, AICP

Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development
331 Queen Street, Suite A

Boone, NC 28607

(828) 265-8043

(828) 265-8080 (fax)

joe.furman@watgov.org

146



050714 BCC Meeting

147



050714 BCC Meeting

148



050714 BCC Meeting

Anita.Fogle

From: Kim Brown <Kim.Brown@townofboone.net>

Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2014 12:25 PM

To: Anita.Fogle

Subject: Town of Boone ETJ nominations

Attachments: Robert Goddard application.pdf; Thomas Purpur application.pdf

Good Afternoon Anita:
At the regular meeting last week, the Boone Town Council made the following nominations for ETJ positions:

Board of Adjustment (Regular ETJ member) - Dr. Robert (Bob) Goddard
Planning Commission (ETJ) member) - Thomas Purpur.

Please forward these nominations on to the County Commissioners for consideration. I am attaching the board applications for
both nominees. Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks and have a great day!
Kim

Kimberly S. Brown, CMC

Town Clerk

Boone Town Hall

PO Drawer 192

Boone, NC 28607
(828)268-6200/(828)268-6208 fax
www.townofboone.net
kim.brown@townofboone.net

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to public records requests pursuant to the North Carolina Public Records Law,
resulting in monitoring and potential disclosure of this message to third parties.

149



050714 BCC Meeting

150



050714 BCC Meeting

151



050714 BCC Meeting

152



050714 BCC Meeting

153



050714 BCC Meeting

Blank Page

154



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 9:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

F. Announcements

Budget Work Sessions are scheduled for Thursday, May 8, and Tuesday, May 13, 2014; both
beginning at 4:00 P.M. The Work Sessions will be held in the Commissioners’ Board Room.

Community Pride Week will be held May 12 — 17. The week will conclude on May 17 with
Household Hazardous Waste Day at the County Landfill from 9:00 A.M. until 2:00 P.M. and
Operation Medicine Cabinet at the three local Food Lion locations as well as Foscoe Fire
Department from 10:00 A.M. until 2:00 P.M. Please see the enclosed announcement for more
details.

Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute has invited the Board to a joint meeting on
Wednesday, May 21, 2014, at 6:00 P.M. at the Watauga Instructional Facility on Hwy 105
Bypass, Room 112.

The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners shares the following links accessing
their legislative update video for May which contains a preview of the upcoming legislative
session, information about the NCACC Annual Conference and County Assembly Day, and a
report on legal cases impacting counties:

YouTube: http://youtu.be/OliLj8bWrWg
Google Drive: https://drive.google.com/file/d/0Bx6fC1oKngQQandkakJ2R21kbHM/edit?usp=sharing

155


http://youtu.be/0liLj8bWrWg
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0Bx6fC1oKngQQandkakJ2R21kbHM/edit?usp=sharing

050714 BCC Meeting

Anita.Fogle

From: Lisa.Doty

Sent: Tuesday, April 08, 2014 11:30 AM

To: all.employees

Subject: HHWD, Community Pride Week and Medicine Take-back Day

Please help us spread the word and share this information with your friends and associates. Thanks so much!!!

WATAUGA COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
PROCLAIM May 12 - 17 AS COMMUNITY PRIDE WEEK
Household Hazardous Waste Collection and Drug Take-Back May 17

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners have designated May 12 - 17 as “Community Pride Week” with the goal of
improving the appearance of Watauga County. During this week Watauga County residents will have an opportunity to dispose
of many types of waste for no charge, including old furniture, yard debris, appliances, electronics, medications and household
hazardous waste. (This does not apply to commercial haulers or businesses.)

Following is a list of Community Pride Week events. All events are free for Watauga County residents.
FREE DISPOSAL OF RESIDENTIAL DEBRIS

When: Monday, May 12— Saturday, May 17
HOURS: Mon. = Fri. 8 a.m.— 4 p.m. and Sat. 8a.m.—12 p.m.

Where: Watauga County Landfill
336 Landfill Road
What: appliances, tires, furniture, metal, asphalt (no asphalt shingles), brick, cement, rock, brush (no stumps),
electronics

HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE DAY
(Residential ONLY, NO COMMERCIAL WASTE)

When: Saturday, May 17
9a.m.-2p.m.

Where: Watauga County Landfill
336 Landfill Road

What: paint, household batteries, NiCad batteries, lead-acid batteries (car type), antifreeze, ethylene,
gasoline, lighter fluid, solid and liquid pesticides, oxidizers, used oils, household cleaners, etc.

OPERATION MEDICINE CABINET

When: Saturday, May 17
10 a.m.—2 p.m.
Where: Food Lions (3 locations)

1. Hwy 321 near Wal-Mart
2. Hwy 421/0Id Hwy 421
3. Blowing Rock

Foscoe Fire Department

What: All prescription and over-the-counter medications and medical supplies.
NO QUESTIONS ASKED

Please call 828-264-5305 for more information about Community Pride Week or contact Lisa Doty at 828-265-4852 /

lisa.doty@watgov.org with questions about recycling.

Lisa Doty

Watauga County Recycling Manager

lisa.doty@watgov.org 156
828-265-4852




050714 BCC Meeting

Caldwell Community College

and Technical Institute
Office of the President

April 28, 2014

Mr. Deron Geouque

Watauga County Manager

814 West King Street, Suite 205
Boone, NC 28607

Dear Mr. Geouque:

The Trustees of Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute would like to
schedule a joint meeting of the College Board of Trustees and the Watauga County
Commissioners on Wednesday, May 21, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. at the Watauga
Instructional Facility on Hwy 105 By-pass, Room 112.

Will you please check the date and time with the Commissioners and let my assistant,
Donna Church know either by e-mail: dchurch@cccti.edu or phone: 828-726-2210, if
May 21, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. will accommodate the Watauga County Commissioners’
schedule. Since a meal will be provided, we will need to know how many plan to
attend by Thursday, May 15.

Sincerely,

L

Kénneth A. Boham, Ed.D.
President

dlc

2855 Hickory Blvd., Hudson, NC 28638 e 828.726.2210
Email: kboham@cccti.edu e Fax: 828.726.2300 ¢ www.cccti.edu

An Equal Opportunity Educator & Employer

157



050714 BCC Meeting

AGENDA ITEM 10:

PuBLIC COMMENT

AGENDA ITEM 11:

BREAK

AGENDA ITEM 12:

CLOSED SESSION

Attorney/Client Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)
Personnel Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6)

158



	Agenda

	Approval of Minutes

	Approval of the May 7, 2014, Agenda
	Board of Education’s Request for Lottery Funds
	Appalachian Theatre of the High Country Request
	Proposed Audit Contract for FY 2014
	Maintenance Matters
	A.  Bid Award Request for Asphalt Sealing & Stiping Project

	B.  Bid Award Request for AEC Renovation Project

	C.  
Bid Award Request for Medic Base Architectural Services 
	D.  Contract Renewal Request for P&R Weekend Janitorial Services


	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds & Releases

	C.  Unpaid Real Estate Tax Bills


	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Presentation of the FY 2015 CIP
	B.  Presentation of the Manager's FY 2015 Recommended Budget

	C.  Proposed Property & Liability Insurance & Workers Comp Renewals Request

	D.  Request for Use of Old High School Parking Lot

	E.  Boards & Commissions

	F.  Announcements


	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



